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Major Accomplishments

RERC

12012

April PT A

May 71 H

Launched the new website with online customer
services and live “Bright Smart Finance Channel”,
providing all-weather interactive experience 24 hours a
day for its clients.
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"BS Pre-IPO Trading Centre” commenced operation
officially, as one of the very few Hong Kong securities
houses capable of providing pre-listing trading for new
shares.

e Wanchai Branch commenced operation officially. [
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As the first securities house sponsored by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for organizing the “2012 HSI
Volatility Index Futures Competition”, which we
received popular responses.

BHEESTEBXMEREN 2012 FIERKIEER
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June 7 A

e Following the operation of the mobile securities
trading platform, its mobile futures trading platform
was successfully launched as well.
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August J\ H

e Mei Foo Branch and Hung Hom Branch commenced
operation officially.

o XFRAMFAITIENRAR

Hung Hom Branch
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Mei Foo Branch
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September 1. A October + A

e Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum purchased a sizeable e Innovated the "Installment Margin Scheme”, allowing
shop in Jordan under his private spending as the its clients to purchase stocks first and repay in
Group’s Kowloon Headquarters and reserve as backup installment.
support centre. o HAITRESHMHKEE ] AEPRHKRELER

o IRERMEALABALAER  EAEENER HizigEE -
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e Kowloon City Branch commenced operation, thus 7 - i 73 . .tlf-l BJ' !ﬁ! %I' jﬂ

further increasing the total number of branches.
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November +— H

e Being selected by the Shanghai Stock Exchange as the
Hong Kong security house designated for visit and
communication, further elevating its corporate
reputation and reflecting the general recognization of
its unique development model among its peers in the
industry.
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Major Accomplishments

RERC

12013

February — A

e To express appreciation to its clients, over one
thousand clients were invited to enjoy free movies at a
cinema in Causeway Bay with the management during
the Chinese New Year.

e EEEF  MFHHRNRBREXBSRE PR
BTREF2MEEIREHE -

e Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum contributed out of his
own pocket a reward of 4.75 million shares of Bright
Smart for the outstanding staff, with the annual bonus
and the annual lucky draw, the total awards to staff
amounted to over HK$10 million.
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March = A April P9 A

e Kowloon Headquarters with a floor area of 20,000 e To go in line with the After-Hour Futures Trading
square feet commenced operation officially to serve its launched by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, “Bright
clients 7-day a week. Smart After-Hour Futures Trading Cup” and seminars

o HMMERMNERAIEXKRARS - TEELX on After-Hour Futures Trading were organized, which
o successfully increased its market share of After-Hour

Futures Trading.
e REBRFAMHLETHE - 8| B RPE] X
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e Being licensed by the Securities and Futures
Commission to carry out Type 3 (Leveraged Foreign
Exchange Trading) regulated activity.
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Branch Network

Hong Kong & &

1 Hong Kong Head Office 10th Floor, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road, Central T:(852) 2532 7888
BEBAREE RIREHET 71 KL EEARAE10E2E
2 Sales & Customer 27th Floor, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road, Central T:(852) 2537 1371
Services Department FRIREEETR 71 kR EBRE 278
SHEREF REEH
3 Central Branch Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road, Central T:(852) 3961 6688
o PR FIR 2R KIEH 58-60 5E ik A E REE
=
% 4 Wanchai Branch Ist Floor, Henning House, No. 385-391 Hennessy Road, Wanchai T:(852) 3127 0888
aQ BEOAT B EFBFHE 385391 A EAE 1122 [E
P 5 North Point Branch Shop 201-202, 2nd Floor, Olympia Plaza, 255 King's Road, North Point T:(852) 3180 7428
% BB it F 2 2 38 255 SRR ERE IS 2 TR 1-2 5548
o 6 Quarry Bay Branch Shop 7, G/F and Mezzanine Floor, Tak Lee Building, T:(852) 3550 7888
~ il #UB 21T 993 King’s Road, Quarry Bay
HIRBRIE 93 HREMEM T 7 RBREERE
X
-\
L
2 Kowloon f13E
7 7 Kowloon Headquarters Shop 7 on G/F, Whole of Mezzanine Floor and Whole of 1st Floor, T:(852) 3604 1888
NEEAE Honour House, Nos. 375-381, Nathan Road, Kowloon
BEMZUE375-381 e BAE M T 7556 - MR 1122E
8 Mongkok Branch Whole of 1st Floor, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street, T:(852) 3188 0928
EAD1T Mongkok
HAGEZHE3I-NRNBREAE1EEE
9 Sham Shui Po Branch Basement, G/F & Cockloft, 39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po T:(852) 3666 5688
HKE 1T RIKIS RN AT 39 SR T
10  Kwun Tong Branch Shop 18, G/F, Cambridge Building, 10 Tung Ming Street, Kwun Tong T:(852) 3768 0888
BRES T BREmRE 105 BERE 185K G
11 Mei Foo Branch Shop 79 and 80 of Podium Floor, No. 51-53 Broadway Street, T:(852) 3120 0388
EIZH1T Mei Foo Sun Chuen Phase 3, Mei Foo )
EFBEEHS1-535FEFMITE 3T & 79-80 54
12  Kowloon City Branch Shop 4 on G/F & Shops 5 & 6 on 1st Floor, The Prince Place, No. 398 Prince T:(852) 3921 3388
NEH DT Edward Road West, Kowloon
JUBEYK £8P0 398 54  AF3b T 455748 b 148 5-6 5%
13  Hung Hom Branch G/F, 103 Wuhu Street, Hung Hom T:(852) 3127 9288
A D17 AT EE AT 103 SR T

New Territories ¥ &

14  Tsuen Wan Branch Flat A & B, 12/F., Hang Sang Tsuen Wan Building, 289 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan T:(852) 3929 2798
ZEA1T S IHE 289 IBAREKE 1212 AB E

15  Tai Wai Branch Shop A, G/F & Portion of the Yard, 66 Tai Wai Road, Tai Wai T:(852) 3763 3488
KEDT ANEKEE 665 EXEH T A

16  Tai Po Branch G/F & Cockloft, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po T:(852) 3763 3388
RED1T AIERRE 141145 SR 4530 T M RiE

17  Yuen Long Branch Shop 5, G/F, 26 Fook Tak Street 22 Tung Lok Street, Yuen Long T:(852) 3926 2688
LB 1T TLRAREAE 26 9 R R 44T 22 5% N 5B 5 48

18  Sheung Shui Branch Unit 2007-2009, 20/F, Landmark North, 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Sheung Shui T:(852) 3768 7188
EkBT EOKEEBREK 39 9% /K &5 204 20072009 =
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Awards
4% 18

NEEEEEAE2010/2011
President’s Award
2010/2011
Fj i }
'I —_ ey
" BRERE

) -

s ﬁ‘. ’% % y"i. Caring Company

President’s Award 2000/2011

) WA Gk AL
L) Wrigtht Sisart Sevurities &
W annipmmleths @ gpessp | amiiel

S

FRHEEHE2012
Hong Kong Outstanding
BABEHLEFERS RS Enterprises 2012
Bright Smart Securities Joyful 28 mhE K#€2010 EARSEIREA 122010
Charity Raffle Tiecket Capital Weekly Pro Capital Weekly Service
Choice 2010 Awards 2010
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Bright Smart Securities adhered to the business principle
of “Integrity, Faithfulness, Fairness, Conscience and
Customer Foremost” and robustly provides unparalleled
services and strong sense of commitment in fulfilling
corporate social responsibility, the Group has been highly
recognized and accredited with numerous awards these
years.
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Financial Highlights
i EE

(Unit: HK$’000, unless stated otherwise)
(Bfy - BEEFT - BRIFFFIFE)

=
§ Turnover #aram 273,281 228,707 19.5%
8. Other revenue Hinlhzs 57,724 36,972 56.1%
I . . 575 NI NN L
a Profit from operations S H 123,959 85,892 44 3%
% Profit before taxation B F BT Al 107,151 73,351 46.1%
=T Profit attributable to equity 1R 25 A% B A Y4 T
= shareholders 92,226 60,636 52.1%
>oo
&
S Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRRERREF] (B 10.18 8.92 14.1%
O
g Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) A EEEZF GBL) 10.17 8.89 14.4%
Ml Final dividend per share (HK cents) IR AR EARL B (FB1L) 2.7 1.8 50.0%

Turnover Net Profit

= # F

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT BEAT

300 100

oo 273.3 92.2
y 90 \
250 2287 80 @

200
60.6
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2012 2013 2012 2013
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March
HE=A=t—HIFE HE=ZA=FT—HItFE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Chairman &

With the world financial market turmoil, the rapid growth in Asia economy brought about
innovative operating concept, products, and services for the financial sector in Hong Kong.
Confronted with challenges and opportunities, the Group adhered to the business philosophy
of “integrity, faithfulness, fairness, conscience and customer foremost” and robustly expanded
its business irrespective of difficult market with the number of branches increased to 16
(excluding the head office in Central) and aggregated customers accounts exceeding 90,000,
thus successfully seizing market shares and awareness. In future, the Group will build on the
prudent strategies to proactively make plans for diversification and optimized expansion in a
bid to consolidate the strength.

WRAEMTSHE  DNEENRRER  REENTRETFREFOHLEMD - ERMR
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

I am pleased to present the annual results of Bright Smart Securities &
Commodities Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 (the
“Year"). Notwithstanding various uncertain factors, including weak
global economic growth and unresolved European debt crisis, the
Group continued to expand its operation scale, attract new customers
and launch financial products to keep up with times. These initiatives
brought about remarkable results to the shareholders with turnover
and net profit hitting record high and a surge in the number of
customers, and proved the correctness of the Group’s deployments
and strategies.

Despite changes and challenges in the business environment, the
Group continued to expand during the Year. With well-considered
deployments, the Group made satisfactory progress in expanding its
branch network, its visibility was greatly enhanced, and its fast
expanding customer base grew significantly from prior year’s 60,000
to over 90,000, along with a substantial growth in turnover as well.
Encouragingly, the Group recorded an annual turnover of HK$273.3
million, rising by 19.5% over the year ended 31 March 2012 (the
“Prior Year"). Profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$92.2
million, representing a significant increase of 52.1% over the Prior
Year. Basic earnings per share were approximately HK10.18 cents
(2012: HK8.92 cents), representing a year-on-year growth of 14.1%.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) proposed a final
dividend of HK2.7 cents per share (2012: HK1.8 cents per share) for
the Year.

During the first half of the Year, destabilizing factors, including global
investment volatility, the debt crisis looming over global economy,
Cyprus economic crisis, U.S. presidential election and “fiscal cliff”,
Japan’s quantitative easing policy, and national leader shift in
Mainland, rendered the market lack of investment directions. The

AARARERT B EeBREBERIB (AR
ADRENBARISABEIAREDEE_F
—ZFZAZT-RALFE(AFED 2FEHE
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BACERIF IS LA EEhE - HERASF
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B EHLEBETADEER - AEEHEFE
BEFEIZIEER L BHE_ZT——_F=A
=+—HEFETEFE]D EF195%  KES
ABE - EEREEHEFNABR2EEE T &
FFEERIBIEMS2.1% - BREAEFLE10.18
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ERREGABIF  FETRERRTHHR
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Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13



economic slowdown brought unprecedented challenges to securities
firms. It was not until September that the market started to stabilize.
After the European Central Bank announced to purchase European
debts via Outright Monetary Transactions (OMT) and the United
States launched a third round of “quantitative easing” (QE3), Hong
Kong stocks resumed its rally. Moreover, with suppress policies for
property markets by Hong Kong and the Mainland, capitals urgently
needed to find investment markets, injecting vitality to stock and FX
markets. Afterwards, the market became more buoyant, and the
Group’s securities broking, margin financing and futures broking
businesses recorded steady growth.

In spite of a challenging business environment, the Group continues
to adopt prudent and optimistic alternatives, and capitalizes on good
opportunities and explores new businesses and new customers amidst
the downturn market with a view to enhancing the Group’s market
position in finance services sector. In order to improve competitive
advantages, the Group invested in improvement in basic equipments
and customer services. During the Year, the Group actively opened 5
new branches in prime locations, totaling its number of branches to
16 (excluding the head office in Central), including the Jordan Branch
purchased at HK$180 million under my private spending, built as the
Group's Kowloon Headquarters and backup support centre occupying
twenty thousand square feet. The Kowloon Headquarters can
accommodate 60 comfortable and spacious separate seats and
provide 7-day a week service, to bring unprecedented considerate
experience for local customers and make concrete arrangements for
the gradual opening up of capital outflow in the Mainland. In addition
to the above self-financed property, Wanchai Branch, Kowloon City
Branch, Mei Foo Branch and Hung Hom Branch were also put into
use, becoming the most effective platforms for attracting new
customers. In virtue of the aggressive expansion plan, the Group not
only enhanced its visibility but also successfully seized market shares,
with total number of client accounts expected to reach 100,000
within a short period of time.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

To cater to a sizable customer base, we certainly continue to expand
diversified financial products that can lead investment trend. The
Group, in close line with investment pulse, launched a variety of
products and services even beyond the imagination of investors. In
the view of the high property prices in the Year and the public’s
difficulties to increase in the property market, the Group
unprecedentedly launched the “Installment Margin Scheme” under
which customers can bargain hunting favorite stocks and then pay in
installments, allowing customers to flexibly utilize their funds while
having an early start. The Plan was well received by customers and
various parties since its launch, and has successfully attracted new
customers to open accounts.

As online trading has become the new investment trend coupled with
HKEx's implementation of the second phase of trading hour
extension, the Group introduced brand new website and online
trading system, to offer customers around-the-clock online trading
services and investment information. Customers can now view demo
videos on account opening, stock withdrawal/deposit and voice-based
order placing in Hong Kong stock market simply by browsing our
website on PC or mobile; in this way, customers can now open
accounts even without stepping outside their house. In addition,
online customer service is available throughout the process, to provide
customers with assured, secure and fast one-stop online investment
interactive experience. Meanwhile, through the Bright Smart Finance
Channel, the Group could promptly inform customers of the latest
thorough information about global investment.

The Group provides powerful financial information to help customers
make informed investment decisions. The Group promotes the “Bright
Smart” brand name to the rest of the world by taking advantage of
webcast at Bright Smart Finance Channel, the Group’s flagship
information platform. To tap into the financial markets in the
Mainland, the Group provides one-stop financial services for Mainland
investors. Capitalizing on its solid financial position, quality customer
services, superior commission policy, reliable trading platform and
good reputation, the Group is well equipped to explore the financial
markets of the Mainland.
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During the Year, the Group achieved another important
breakthrough. The Group was licensed to carry out Type 7 (Providing
Automated Trading Services) regulated activities by Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong, and officially launched the “BS
Pre-IPO Trading Centre” in April 2013, ranking among a few Hong
Kong securities houses that can provide new shares pre-listing trading.
The regulatory approval fully reflects that the Group’s operation scale,
stability of online trading platform, and comprehensive risk
management system are leading in the industry.

Despite uncertainties in the economic outlook, the HKEx still explored
possibilities of tapping new businesses, wherein the HKEx
implemented the After-Hour Futures Trading in April, a move most
supported by securities traders in the Year. To promote After-Hour
Futures Trading and teaching, the Group specially convened the
“Bright Smart After-Hour Futures Trading Cup” investment
competition, and the winner could receive a bonus of up to
HK$500,000. All branches responded enthusiastically and extended
business hours to provide services for investors. The After-Hour
Futures Trading could facilitate investors to make immediate hedging
and arbitrage in the event of sudden changes in external market
conditions, thereby avoiding risks. As a result, only within just a few
months after the launch of this service, the Group has obtained
satisfactory market share of approximately 13%, with futures
commission income increasing significantly and the single-day trading
volume calculated by the number of contracts hitting a new record-
high since its commencement of business.

As a result of rapid expansion in global financial market, the study on
diversifying financial products became an important factor to enhance
the Group’s competitiveness. Last year, the Group launched the
services for trading China “B” shares, Singapore stocks and Taiwan
stocks and introduced more global futures products, such as FX
futures and agricultural commodity futures, providing a one-stop shop
for trading financial products while laying a foundation for the
Group's internationalization. The Group plans to further expand its
core business. the Group will continue to actively explore business
opportunities for RMB financial products.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

As to investor education, leveraging on its close relations with major
regulatory agencies, the Group from time to time organizes seminars
in collaboration with HKEx and major financial institutions to update
investors on the latest market developments. In addition, the Group is
selected by Shanghai Stock Exchange as the local securities trader for
designated visits and exchanges; during the Year, Shanghai Stock
Exchange dispatched personnel to inspect the Group’s head office
and branches, reflecting that the Group’s unique development pattern
has become an industrial benchmark. The Group’s Marketing Director,
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi was awarded “Most Influential Hong Kong Stock
Analyst” reward in “Annual Financial Rankings 2012" by the well-
known financial website cnfol.com, to honor his investment analysis
articles getting highest Click Through Rate (CTR).

Furthermore, in association with the launch of HSI Volatility Index
Futures by HKEx, the Group organized “2012 HSI Volatility Index
Futures Competition” under the sponsorship of the HKEx in April
2012 to familiarize investors with such products through mock
trading. Such activities were well received among investors and
reached its maximum capacity with 949 contestants.

PROSPECTS

International stock market and global economies are affected by the
uncertainties, such as the subprime mortgage crisis, USA’s credit
squeeze and stress from global inflation. Despite such facts, the
Group still holds cautious optimism over the Hong Kong’s economy
prospects, and yet is confident in substantial business opportunities
for the forward-looking enterprises to tap on. The Group has made
appropriate preparations to cope with the relevant developments and
seize the opportunities presented forthwith.

In order to absorb new clients, enlarge its market share and enhance
its brand image, the Group will continue to look for suitable locations
for business development and branch network expansion, aiming at a
territory-wide brand network that covers the 18 districts of Hong
Kong. As China has emerged as a major economic power in the
international arena, the Group will strive to develop the Mainland
market and commit more resources to attract customers in the
Mainland, so as to increase revenue streams. The Group’s powerful
and reliable online trading platform allows the Group to offer one-
stop financial services to Mainland investors. The Group adheres to its
favorable commission policy which will also help lure more PRC
customers and gain a foothold in the Mainland.

With the commitment to serve customers as the top priority, the
Group will continue to adhere to its stated strategy of product
diversification with a view to meeting customers’ requirements and
develop new income streams. In March 2012, the Group was licensed
to carry out Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activity in the same
month, and is now formulating the plan to introduce investors and
launch the Group'’s first fund product. As to the global products, the
Group is rolling out the leveraged forex trade, bullion products as well
as Japan stock trading, so as to generate new sources of income.
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Being a socially responsible enterprise, the Group spares efforts to
contribute to the community and actively participates in charitable
activities, which will benefit the entire community. During the Year,
the Group co-hosted with Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation and
sponsored the “Joyful Charity Run to Ocean Park” and “Joyful Charity
Raffle Ticket” to raise funds for the promotion of mental health
education and drive home the importance of sports to mental health.
Besides, the Group has been awarded the “Caring Company” logo by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS) for four years
consecutively. In the Prior Year, in order to recognize the Group’s
continuous efforts and commitment to the living standard in the
community, the Group was awarded “Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprise 2012"” by Economic Digest and “Hexun Best Futures
Company 2012" by hexun.com, respectively.

This year witnessed the challenges that the Group experienced. Due
to the teamwork and dedication by the management and employees,
the Group’s business and income streams were diversified so as to
intensify the Group’s brand and market position. We are confident
that we continue to enhance the investment returns to the
shareholders. | am committed to cooperate with the Board of
Directors and senior management in good faith and formulate
development policies which advance steadily and keep abreast with
the times and guide the Group to make greater achievements with a
view to becoming a diversified and international finance services
institution.

High calibers is the key to achieve the Group’s objective, | am hereby
willing to share achievements and results with employees with having
given 4,750,000 shares in Bright Smart Securities in individual’s name
to employees with outstanding performance or with 30 years of
services this year, coupled with year end bonus and anniversary lucky
draw, an aggregated amount of exceeding 10 million dollars is
feedback to employees who has made joint efforts. Last but not least,
| take this opportunity to thanks all employees for their efforts and
hardworking and extend sincere appreciation to all shareholders and
customers for their support.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 June 2013
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MARKET OVERVIEW

During the Year under review, as a result of unpredictable changes
hovering over the global economy, coupled with the unresolved debt
crisis plaguing Europe, the investing sentiment towards capital market
in Hong Kong was also affected. The Hang Seng Index swung
between gains and losses, and began to plunge in May, hitting an all-
year low of 18,056 points on 4 June 2012, all of which were
contributed by the following factors, including uncertainties
overshadowing the fiscal cliff in America, the winner of French
presidential election (Hollande, rather than Sarkozy) holding the view
of anti-austerity, the nationalization of the Spanish banking
conglomerate Bankia, and the concerns over the hard landing in
China’s economy. In the second half of the Year, all central banks
across the world opened the floodgates. In September, the European
Central Bank announced the Outright Monetary Transaction program
to purchase European bonds, and America escalated a third round of
Quantitative Easing, resulting in a continued influx of hot money into
Hong Kong and boosting the property market. Assured by the political
stability after the 18th National Congress, investors regained their
confidence, and the Hong Kong stock market resumed rally, climbing
up to 22,000 points in November.

In conclusion, the Hang Seng Index opened at 20,556 points on 2
April 2012 and closed at 22,300 points on 28 March 2013,
representing an accumulated increase of 8.5% in the period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R DT

Hong Kong stocks showed volatility during the Year. Negative
sentiment dragged down the average daily turnover to HK$56.46
billion, down 15.2% over the Prior Year. The average daily numbers
of derivatives contracts traded on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited and stock options contracts traded on the Stock Exchange
were 264,266 and 237,920 (2012: 271,669 and 287,561)
respectively. The initial public offering (“IPO") market has also been
affected by the market conditions, and several listing applicants failed
to activate their IPOs as scheduled or scaled down the size of their
fundraising exercises. The number of companies having obtained
listing on the Main Board and GEM (excluding those companies which
transferred their listings from GEM to the Main Board) during the
Year was 55 (2012: 94), and funds raised by way of IPO were
approximately HK$250.7 billion, representing a decrease of 0.4% as
compared to HK$251.8 billion in the Prior Year. As a result of the
market fluctuation in the Prior Year, new IPO activities were stagnant,
causing HKEx to lose its top global position in terms of fund-raising
through new listings. In the fourth quarter, however, the investment
market started warming up, evidenced by the successful listing of
heavyweight shares of PICC Group (1339) in early December last year.
Besides ranking fourth in the global IPO market, HKEx reported a
slight decrease of approximately 0.5% in the annual gross proceeds.
In March this year, the listing of Oi Wah Pawnshop (1319) and
Xinchen China Power (1148) also recorded outstanding subscription
over-allotment, warming up new IPOs in the new year. Looking into
2013, it's generally considered that the IPO funds or the number of
new IPOs are expected to outperform those in 2012. A variety of new
IPOs plan to raise funds of over HK$10 billion, proving that Hong
Kong remains an influential international fundraising centre.
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In the domestic market, the central government relinquished its
growth rate target of 8%, and the economic growth decelerated
accordingly. In the fourth quarter, however, the manufacturing sector
showed signs of growth while the A-share market also bounced back
from the bottom, exiting from years of weak market.

Looking into 2013 to 2014, issues related to the European debt
remain to be solved, and Obama, reelected as US president, will
address fiscal issues as his primary task, including a new deficit
reduction plan implemented in 2013, resulting in a watch-and-see
market that brings impact to the American economy. In addition, the
market again shifts its focus on when the Federal Reserve will tighten
its monetary policies. The volatility in the overseas market and the
oscillating exporting statistics in mainland and Hong Kong lead to one
question as to whether the economy in mainland will decelerate. All
of these phenomena in question are the indicators of the performance
of Hong Kong stocks. However, with the ample liquidity in the market
maintained, the market investors generally remain positive about the
prospect and outlook of the Hong Kong stocks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group’s turnover significantly
increased by 19.5% to HK$273.3 million (2012: HK$228.7 million),
hitting its record high. Profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$92.2 million (2012: HK$60.6 million), representing a sharp
increase of 52.1% when compared with the Prior Year. The Group'’s
impressive results for the Year were mainly attributable to the
following facts. The management maintained its aggressive expansion
and continued its expansion of branch network during the Year. The
Group also upheld its philosophy of innovation and transformation to
introduce products through innovation and provide better services.
Thus, the customer base expanded rapidly, contributing to a
significant increase of commission income from brokerage against the
downward market trend and promoting profit growth. Basic earnings
per share were HK10.18 cents (2012: HK8.92 cents) and the diluted
earnings per share were HK10.17 cents (2012: HK8.89 cents). The
Board proposed a final dividend of HK2.70 cents (2012: HK1.80
cents) per share for the Year.
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TURNOVER

During the period under review, the Hong Kong stocks had a mixed
performance with a drop of 15.2% in the average daily trading
volume to HK$56.46 billion. However, by capitalizing on its aggressive
marketing strategies, well-established branch networking, and a
sizeable client base, the Group reported a substantial growth both in
its turnover and in the commission from the securities and futures
brokerage businesses for the period. During the Year, the Group
proactively continued to expand against the market conditions with
five more new branches opened for business, including the Jordan
branch purchased by Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum through his private
investment of HK$180 million. The Jordan branch was built into
Bright Smart’s Kowloon headquarters with an area of 20,000 square
feet, improving and optimizing the branch network of the Group. As
a result, the total number of branches increased to 16, excluding the
Central head office. Currently, the Group has ten selected branches
operating seven-day services, one of which is Bright Smart’s Kowloon
headquarters in Jordan. Such services will enable customers to open
new accounts, make inquiries, and settle and subscribe new shares
during the weekends and public holidays while improving our
customer service quality and enhancing our communication with
clients.

By leveraging on a sizable customer base, the Group is committed to
introducing diversified financial products and services that can keep
up with times and lead investment trend. In view of the high property
prices in the Year and the public’s difficulties to invest in the property
market, the Group initiated the “Installment Margin Scheme” in an
unprecedented manner, under which customers can bargain hunting
favorite stocks and then pay in installments, allowing customers to
flexibly utilize their funds while having an early start. The Plan was
well received by customers. Moreover, the Group has been licensed to
carry out Type 7 (Providing Automated Trading Services) regulated
activities by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong,
and officially launched the “BS Pre-IPO Trading Centre” in April 2013,
ranking among a few Hong Kong securities houses that can provide
new shares pre-listing trading.
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Total Number of Client Accounts
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The strategy of expanding branches yielded triumphant results. During
the Year, the total number of newly opened client accounts was
28,783 (after deducting the closed accounts) (2012: 28,096), further
adding up to the total number of 89,260 client accounts as of 31
March 2013. This represented a significant increase of 47.6% as
compared against that of 60,477 client accounts as of 31 March
2012. Among the newly-opened client accounts, 26,777 were from
the branches, accounting for 93.0% of the newly-opened client
accounts during the Year.
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During the Year, the turnover attributable to the branches was AFEE @ DTS L% 5170088 B t(=F
HK$170.0 million (2012: HK$110.3 million), representing a ——E03EEBT) B IFEEAEEE
remarkable increase of 54.1% over the Prior Year with 62.2% (2012: ok .
Y ] s 7= - —
48.2%) surge in the percentage of total turnover. 54.1% + B ERBILPIBRE62.2% (= F — =
F 1 482%) °
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Turnover distribution from head office and branches
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Year ended 31 March
BHE=A=1+—BILFE

A summary of the revenue from different business segments of the  AEEBEEZEEH I 2 W ZEHHAT ¢
Group is set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BZ=HA=1+—-HILEE

Proportion Proportion
of total of total
2013 turnover 2012 turnover Increment
fEf e 2EEE hBE %
—E-= 2l —T——F 2 th 12
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % %
FET THET
Commission income from: B NEEZ
el
e Securities brokerage o FEHAEL 123,923 45.4% 113,388 49.6% 9.3%
o Hong Kong futuresand o FEBHIE R HIRE
options brokerage Ka 60,593 22.2% 48,012 21.0% 26.2%
e Global futures brokerage o IRFREAE &4 24,633 9.0% 16,459 7.2% 49.7%
e Stock options brokerage o AR ZEERRELL LD 3,426 1.3% 2,569 1.1% 33.4%
o IPO brokerage o BRRAMBELL 3,617 1.3% 3,507 1.5% 3.1%
Interest income from HFRAEF BMA
margin financing 55,883 20.4% 43,967 19.2% 27.1%
Interest income from BRARAEERME
IPO financing FBUA 1,206 0.4% 805 0.4% 49.8%

273,281 100% 228,707 100% 19.5%
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Turnover breakdown by business segments
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EEERN WD

Securities brokerage [ NN

Hong Kong futures and options brokerage _

BEHERARERL

Global futures brokerage _

RIEIRAER

Stock option brokerage -
xS B A2

IPO brokerage .
BRARAEEEL

Interest income from margin financing _
FREENSKA

Interest Income from IPO financing I

BRAFEERENSKA

Year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-Z-——F=A=1+—ALEE

HK$'000

0 30,000 60,000

Securities brokerage

The Group’s commission income from securities brokerage for
the Year was HK$123.9 million (2012: HK$113.4 million), an
increase of 9.3% over the Prior Year, accounting for 45.4%
(2012: 49.6%) of the total turnover. During the Year, the Stock
Exchange recorded a total transaction value of HK$13,832.3
billion (2012: HK$16,303.1 billion), representing a year-on-year
decline of approximately 15.2%. In contrast, the Group
significantly outperformed the market, recording an increase in
commission income from securities brokerage against the
downward market trend. The Group also gained market share
growth during the Year, and the rank in the Group B also rose.

As to the global securities segment, following the introduction
of trading Singapore stocks, China’s B stocks, and Taiwan stocks
last year, the Group also introduced the US stocks margin
financing services, providing margin financing for the designated
US stocks at a maximum margin ratio of 70%. During the Year,
the Group introduced its unprecedented “Installment Margin
Scheme” and “BS Pre-IPO Trading Centre”. Being well-
recognized in the market, these spurred the rapid growth of
new accounts, expanding the revenue stream of the Group. To
lay a solid foundation for the Group to penetrate into the
international market, the Group will vigorously continue to
explore the business opportunities arising from the RMB-based
financial products.
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Commission income from securities brokerage of

Transaction amount of the Hong Kong stock market
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Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—BItFE

Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

The Group’s commission income from Hong Kong futures and
options brokerage for the Year was HK$60.6 million (2012:
HK$48.0 million), a significant increase of 26.2% over the Prior
Year, accounting for 22.2% (2012: 21.0%) of the total
turnover.

2012 2013

Year ended 31 March
HE=ZA=T—RLFE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
PR R =)

Following the launch of the After-Hour Futures Trading in April,
the Group promoted After-Hour futures trading and teaching
and specially convened the “Bright Smart After-Hour Futures
Trading Cup” investment competition with the aim to capturing
the market, and the winner could receive a bonus of up to
HK$500,000, which were well received by customers. All
branches responded enthusiastically and extended business
hours to provide services for investors. The After-Hour Futures
Trading could facilitate investors to make immediate hedging
and arbitrage in the event of sudden changes in external market
conditions, thereby avoiding risks. As a result, within just a few
months after the launch of this service, the Group has obtained
a satisfactory market share of approximately 13%, with futures
commission income increasing significantly and the single-day
trading volume calculated by the number of contracts hitting a
new record high since its commencement of business.

Global futures brokerage

The volatile global markets prompted trading of global futures
deemed as a hedging tool, leading to more frequent trading
activities and fuelling the active growth of the global futures
market with a growing number of clients. Accordingly the
commission income from global futures brokerage for the Year
recorded HK$24.6 million (2012: HK$16.5 million), significantly
up 49.7% from the Prior Year, accounting for 9.0% (2012:
7.2%) of the total turnover.
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Stock options brokerage

To meet customer needs, the Group has introduced the trading
service for Hong Kong stock options since August 2010,
recording an income of HK$3.4 million during the Year (2012:
HK$2.6 million), accounting for 1.3% (2012: 1.1%) of the total
turnover. Stock option is a highly leveraged investment product,
thus the Group will closely monitor the margin levels maintained
in stock options accounts and adjust according to market
conditions to ensure proper risk management.

Margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s interest income from margin
financing was HK$55.9 million (2012: HK$44.0 million), a
significant increase of 27.1% over the Prior Year, accounting for
20.4% (2012: 19.2%) of the total turnover. The Group’s
average monthly margin financing amount increased
substantially by 39.2% from approximately HK$970 million last
year to approximately HK$1,350 million during the Year. The
Group has always been providing competitive margin ratios in
order to attract more clients to buy stocks through margin
financing.

During the Year, the Group issued rights shares on the basis of
the allotment of one rights share for every two existing shares,
broadening the financial resources that would provide ample
funds for the growth of margin financing business.

The Group implemented the effective credit control process.
Despite substantial growth in the margin financing amount, the
Group did not have any record of bad debts over the past years.

IPO brokerage and IPO financing

In recent years, as a result of the unsatisfactory performance of
newly listed shares and investors’ lukewarm interest in
subscription, competition grew intense in the IPO financing
market. However, by capitalizing on its competitive margin
financing interest rate and quality services, the Group achieved
outstanding performance in the IPO market. The Group's
interest income from IPO financing increased by 49.8% to
HK$1.2 million (2012: HK$0.8 million), while the commission
income from IPO brokerage was HK$3.6 million (2012: HK$ 3.5
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 3.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE R DT

OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT KReEpIRARI=R
MARGIN

In line with the fast-growing business, the Group’s operating expenses B & ¥ 15M E R - ANE B AL S 5 X TR AR FE 1
increased as well. During the Year, the Group incurred operating fl * AFERKE LAY B22428 8B T (=F
expenses of HK$224.2 million (2012: HK$191.6 million), representing — —4F : 1916 AEE L) * IRELIN17.0% © &
a year-on-year increase of 17.0%. The increase in operating expenses &R LTI RFEHARREERNEBREE 7T L H
was mainly attributable to the rising staff costs and business-related R 2 LB TR AR EFHEBERST L -
expenses as a result of the Group's business expansion and the launch AR E B2 ) EHER MK R IR HIFEE - S A&
of new businesses during the Year. However, the Group is committed  EH4EF|KIEINZE33.7%(ZF——F : 26.5%) °
to implementing efficient cost control measures, bringing the Group’s

net profit margin up to 33.7% (2012: 26.5%).

w
N

A breakdown of the operating expenses is set out below: AR BRI T -

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLHEE

D
S
Y
Q
@
3
™
S
—
O
(%2
A
c
%]
2,
(@)
S
Q
>
o
>
S
o
=<
2,
wn

2013 2012 Increment

—E-=F —E—_F = Yill

HK$'000 HK$'000 %

THT FHIT

Staff costs 8 TR 85,078 74,720 13.9%

Depreciation e 12,857 10,588 21.4%

Finance costs TSRS 16,807 12,541 34.0%

Advertising and promotion expenses E4 N EERH Y 7,892 6,955 13.5%

Handling and settlement expenses FEBREEER 22,242 18,409 20.8%

Information and communication BB

expenses 21,037 20,507 2.6%
Rentals, rates and building He  =mREFEREE

management fee 36,574 29,045 25.9%

Legal and professional fees FRMEEER 3,007 2,961 1.6%

Miscellaneous expenses HMIERY 18,704 15,842 18.1%

224,198 191,568 17.0%
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FUTURE PLANS

HKEx has been proactively developing its trading platform. In addition
to the extension of trading hours and the research on new RMB
structured products, functional enhancement of the trading system,
and alliance with overseas financial markets, HKEx launched the After-
Hour Futures Trading with a view to consolidating the leading position
of Hong Kong as an international financial centre. As one of the
premier securities houses in Hong Kong, the Group is famous for its
aggressive exploration of diversified products and services. Looking
into the future, the Group will vigorously expand its operation scale to
attract more customers, promote After-Hour Futures Trading,
penetrate into the mainland market by recruiting professionals, and
introduce new services that offer prompt and up-to-date market
information. In doing so, the Group will capture rare opportunities in
the market and satisfy different customer demands. The Group will
aggressively yet prudently implement plans for diversification and
optimal expansion in order to further increase its market share by
providing customers with more value-added services.

FULL PENETRATION INTO THE MARKET

Fluctuation in the overseas market undoubtedly affected the
ambitious expansion of the local securities sector. In spite of this, the
Group deeply believes in the overriding importance of capturing
opportunities arising from the threats as well as huge development
potential in the current market, thus strategically increasing its market
penetration in broad and profound senses. In the broad sense, the
Group will aggressively explore potential areas for new branches.
Through the network upgrade and integration, the Group aims to
attract new customers, and further consolidate its position in the
securities market in Hong Kong by extending its branch network to all
the eighteen districts in Hong Kong.

In the profound sense, the Group will aggressively explore the
international market by introducing the diversified and up-to-date
investment products to the global market, and improve its
professional expertise for the ever-changing capital market. As China
is playing a decisive role in the international economies, the Group is
committed to expanding its domestic market in future by deploying
more resources to attract mainland customers, which is expected to
generate considerable income for the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE I smEEL D AT

Trading securities online has become an investment trend. In view of
this and given the second phase of trading hour extension in effect,
the Group already has made its brand new website offer customers
an around-the-clock online trading platform and investment
information. In addition, the Group is optimistic about the
opportunities from online trading through smart phones. The access
to the internet and mobile network make it whenever and wherever
possible for the customers to comfortably enjoy one-stop online
investment service that is safe and fast. Meanwhile, through the live
broadcasting of Bright Smart Finance Channel linked with our
website, the Group could promptly inform customers of the latest and
comprehensive information about global investment.

With the RMB internationalization accelerating, RMB-denominated
bonds and other RMB-denominated products, in particularly the first
RMB futures, are launched in Hong Kong market. In consideration of
these, the Group is extremely keen on the launch of stocks with dual
currencies and dual stock codes, as the Group is attracting new
mainland customers. During the Year, the Group was selected as a
designated local dealer for visiting and exchanging by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, proving its fast growth in recent years is recognized
by relevant institutions in the mainland.

In addition, the Group’s celebrity stock commentator, Mr. Kwok Sze
Chi (executive director and marketing director of the Group) was
selected by cnfol.com last year as the most influential Hong Kong
stock commentator in 2012. It is believed that his regular attendance
at seminars and speech exchanges in the mainland, along with
improvement in the Group’s one-stop platform, will benefit the future
business growth and enhance profitability of the Group.
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DIVERSIFICATION OF PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

In March 2012, the Group was licensed to carry out Type 7 (Providing
Automated Trading Services) regulated activities by Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong, and officially launched the “BS
Pre-IPO Trading Centre” in April 2012, ranking among a few Hong
Kong securities houses that can provide new shares pre-listing trading.
In addition, the Group was licensed to carry out Type 9 (Asset
Management) regulated activities in the same month. Currently, the
Group is exploring its plan to offer professional investors discretionary
accounts and its first fund products. Regarding global products, the
Group started providing margin loans for US stocks in April 2012, and
currently plans to provide such services as leveraged foreign exchange
trading, bullion trading and Japan stock trading. These new services
are expected to bring the Group business opportunities featured with
synergic effects and generate considerable revenues.

24-HOUR ONLINE FUTURES TRADING

Given HKEx planned to launch the operation of After-Hour Futures
Trading in the second half of 2012, the Group took concrete actions
to provide customers with the around-the-clock online futures trading
services and improve its service quality. The Group is of the view that
the online trading has become the epochal trend. Thus, the Group
has invested substantial resources in improving the online trading
platform and smart phone apps, and holds free Saturday and Sunday
lectures on electronic order placing at its branches. These initiatives
enable the customers to grasp the latest market information, and
assist a large number of investors in making wise investment decision.

CONCLUSION

Leveraging on its energetic marketing and development strategies,
the Group was able to achieve rapid business growth against
adversities, and become the industry benchmark by offering a variety
of new services, ranking amongst one of the few profitable securities
houses in the industry during the Year. Looking ahead, in the broad
and profound senses, the Group will increase its market share by
aggressive expansion, while broadening revenue streams by further
diversifying various financial products. With well-designed strategies
for new businesses, the Group will promptly seize opportunities.
Through effective cost control to enhance its overall profitability and
operating efficiency, the Group will stay ahead of the changing
market to generate satisfactory returns for the shareholders of the
Company. The Group is aiming at becoming one of the most sizeable
and powerful securities dealers in the country.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations with shareholders’ equity, cash
generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintained a strong cash position. Its bank deposits, bank
balances and cash amounted to HK$381.5 million as at 31 March
2013 (2012: HK$397.1 million).

The Group had total bank borrowings of HK$1,690.0 million as at 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$425.0 million) which are primarily at fixed
rates. The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised by its margin
clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31 March 2013,
unutilised facilities amounted to HK$983.0 million. The Group’s
gearing ratio, which is total bank borrowings divided by the total
shareholders’ equity, was 223.1% (2012: 86.1%).

As at 31 March 2013, the net current assets of the Group increased
by 48.9% to HK$684.1 million (2012: HK$459.3 million). The Group's
current ratio, which is current assets divided by current liabilities, was
1.28 (2012: 1.42) as at 31 March 2013.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions. For
the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each of them maintains a
liquid capital level adequate to support the level of activities with a
sufficient buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements
arising from potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid
capital requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“FRR").

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March 2013
and 2012.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, subsidiaries of the Company engaging in
securities and futures broking have secured banking facilities from
authorised institutions for a total amount of HK$993.0 million (2012:
HK$623.0 million). The Company has issued corporate guarantees for
a total principal amount of HK$993.0 million (2012: HK$623.0
million) for these facilities. As at 31 March 2013, the subsidiary has
utilised HK$710.0 million of these aggregate banking facilities (2012:
HK$325.0 million).

As at 31 March 2013, the Directors did not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Company under any of the guarantees.
The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured and the
transaction price was nil.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2013 were
approximately HK$101.1 million (2012: HK$36.3 million). The capital
commitments as at 31 March 2013 were approximately HK$8.4
million (2012: HK$1.6 million).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had a work force of 245 employees
(2012: 236 employees). Staff costs, excluding Directors’ emoluments,
amounted to approximately HK$77.4 million for the Year (2012:
HK$68.3 million). The Group’s remuneration policy aims to offer
competitive remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate
competent employees. The Group believes the remuneration packages
are reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The
Group has put in place a share option scheme and a bonus scheme
for its executives and employees in a bid to provide a competitive
remuneration package for the Group’s long term growth and
development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’s
work ability and personal effectiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE I smEEL D AT

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries.

LITIGATION

The legal case regarding a defamation claim between Bright Smart
Securities International (H.K.) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group, and Chief Securities Limited, was settled on 23 April 2013.
The settlement amount was recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from
clients, brokers and clearing houses. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all clients including cash and margin clients. Cash
clients are required to place deposits as prescribed in the Group's
credit policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
Receivables due from cash clients are due within the settlement period
commonly adopted in the relevant market convention, which is
usually within a few days from the trade date. Because of the
prescribed deposit requirements and the short settlement period
involved, the credit risk arising from the amounts due from cash
clients is considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid securities
and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing margin financing to its
clients. Margin loans due from margin clients are repayable on
demand. For commodities and futures broking, an initial margin is
required prior to opening transaction. Market conditions and
adequacy of securities collateral and margin deposits of each margin
account and futures account are monitored by the management on a
daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where
necessary.

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing houses,
credit risks are considered low as the Group normally enters into
transactions with brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in the industry.
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The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as credits are
granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirement and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of funding plus a mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposits with banks and financial liabilities such as bank loans
and loan from a related company are primarily at fixed rates. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from financial
instruments that are denominated in United States dollars (“USD")
and Renminbi (“RMB"”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") is pegged
to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant. In respect of
financial instruments denominated in RMB, the Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances. The management monitors all the foreign currency
positions on a daily basis.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Front row left to right BiHEEE £ :

e Mr. YU Yun Kong (Independent Non-executive Director) e Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph (Independent Non-executive Director)
e Mr. CHAN Kai Fung (Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer) e Mr. YIP Mow Lum (Executive Director & Chairman)

e Mr. KWOK Sze Chi (Executive Director & Marketing Director) e Mr. SZETO Wai Sun (Independent Non-executive Director)

o REIMSCAE(BUIFITEE) o ZEIBLAE(BUIFNTES) o RRUESE (FITESRITHER)

s BIRMAE(BMITESRLIR) o BEREEBWITESTHMFBE) o AIEETEEBUIENTES)

HEZEH I

Back row left to right ZH AL E £ :

e Ms. LI Wan Mei (Chief Financial Officer) e Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak (Company Secretary) e Mr. HUI Yik Bun (Assistant Sales Director)
e Mr. WONG Wing Man (Head of Information Technology) e Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson (Executive Director & Dealing Director)
e Ms. YIP Wing Yan, Jacquelyn (Managing Director)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

Executive Director & Chairman

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
Chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 61, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yip is also the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategies, overseeing operations and the overall steering of
the Group’s management. Mr. Yip has solid experience in brokerage
industry and investment and has over 20 years’ management
experience in securities and futures brokerage. He is a director of
Bright Smart Asset Management Limited (”“Bright Smart Asset
Management”), Bright Smart Forex Limited (“Bright Smart Forex"),
Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited (“Bright Smart Global Bullion”),
Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company Limited (“Bright Smart
Futures”), Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited (“Bright
Smart Securities”) and Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited
("Bright Smart Investment”). Mr. Yip is a responsible officer
recognized by the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong
("SFC") for engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
regulated activity. He is the sole director of New Charming Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company and the uncle of
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive Directors of the
Company and the father of Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the
Managing Director of the Group.

Mr. CHAN Kai Fung

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and designated as an
executive director on 4 August 2010)

Aged 46, is an Executive Director and a Chief Executive Officer with
overall responsibility for the business and operations of the Group.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years’ management experience in securities and
futures businesses, and specialized in IPO financing project. He is also
a director of Bright Smart Asset Management, Bright Smart Forex,
Bright Smart Global Bullion, Bright Smart Futures, Bright Smart
Securities and Bright Smart Investment. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Chan was a director of Coin Fall Limited (a securities brokerage
company) and Lucky Man Properties Limited as well as the
administration manager of Maxview Enterprises Limited.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENRGREEEZEHE

Mr. KWOK Sze Chi
Executive Director & Marketing Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 58, celebrity stock commentator, an Executive Director of the
Company and the Marketing Director of the Group with
responsibilities for the formulation of marketing strategy of the
Group, the management of analysts team as well as the marketing
and business development of Bright Smart Securities and Bright Smart
Futures. Mr. Kwok has over 30 years’ experience in securities and
futures businesses and has expertise in marketing strategy, securities
analysis and corporate management. Mr. Kwok is also a director of
Bright Smart Asset Management, an independent non-executive
director of Victory City International Holdings Limited (a listed
company in Hong Kong) and has been a director of The Institute of
Securities Dealers Limited and a vice chairman of The Hong Kong
Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional Commentators Limited
since 2001 and 2004 respectively. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwok has held senior positions in Peace Town Securities Limited and
Cheerful Securities Limited. He is a responsible officer recognized by
the SFC for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4
(advising on securities), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. He is also a
representative recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type 2
(dealing in futures contracts) regulated activity.

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing Wilson
Executive Director & Dealing Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 48, is an Executive Director of the Company and the Dealing
Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing operations of
Bright Smart Securities and Bright Smart Futures. Mr. Chan is also a
director of Bright Smart Securities and Bright Smart Futures. He has
over 15 years’ experience in securities and futures businesses and is a
responsible officer recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4
(advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts) and
Type 7 (providing automated trading services) regulated activities. Mr.
Chan is the nephew of Mr. Yip, the founder, the Chairman of the
Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company and the cousin
of Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Managing Director of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 47, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a
practising certified public accountant with over 20 years’ experience
in public accounting practice. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 54, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Laws (Hons) and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong
in 1985 and worked in a number of law firms in Hong Kong including
Chan & Co., Y. T. and Cheung & Co., Edmund before becoming a
partner in Szeto W.S. & Lee. Mr. Szeto obtained the Professional
Certificate in Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a course which was
jointly organised by Tsinghua University in the PRC and the School of
Professional and Continuing Education of The University of Hong
Kong in 2002.

Mr. LING Kwok Fai Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Ling has over 17 years' experience in
accounting, finance and administration and has been a director and
the company secretary of a charitable organisation since 2004. Mr.
Ling joined Midland Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was the
executive director when he left the company in 1997. Prior to that, he
was a controller of Hong Kong Telephone Company Limited and has
also worked at Chase Manhattan Bank and the First National Bank of
Boston in accounting field. Mr. Ling is an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. YIP Wing Yan, Jacquelyn
Managing Director
(Joined the Group in May 2012)

Aged 32, is the Managing Director of the Group with the
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's daily internal operation and
devising key strategies for future development plan. Lead, coordinate
and give advices to various departments to provide optimum supports
and quality services. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration (major in Accounting) from City University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Yip is the daughter of Mr. Yip, the founder, the Chairman
of the Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
cousin of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive
Directors of the Company.

Mr. WONG Wing Man
Head of Information Technology
(Joined the Group in March 2009)

Aged 42, is the Head of the Information Technology with the
responsibilities for the formulation of information technology strategy
as well as administration and development of the information
technology system of the Group. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree
in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong. He has over 20
years’ experience in design and development of trading system. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the chief technology officer of
Ayers Solutions Limited where he was responsible for developing its
flagship software product — Ayers GTS online securities/futures
trading system.

Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 29, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Ms. Li has over 7
years' accounting experience, including three years' experience gained
in PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree (first class
honours) in Business Administration from the Lingnan University and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun, Edmond
Assistant Sales Director
(Joined the Group in May 2010)

Aged 39, is the Assistant Sales Director of the Group with the
responsibilities for leading the sales team and promotion work. Mr.
Hui has over 18 years of experience in securities and futures
businesses, and has worked in departments related to securities and
futures in a number of firms. Mr. Hui has expertise in brokerage
operation, sales management and market operation of securities and
futures businesses, particularly with over 10 years’ experience in
frontline branch management. Prior to this existing position, Mr. Hui
served as District manager managing branches’ operations and
supervising over 70 officers. Mr. Hui is also a responsible officer
recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type 1(dealing in securities)
and Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities.

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak
Company Secretary
(2 February 2011-28 May 2012; re-appointed on 16 October 2012)

Aged 56, is @ member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in company
secretarial practices in respect of listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance practices and believes that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet
public and shareholders’ expectations and to comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, as well as to fulfill its commitment
for excellence in corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) sets out two
levels of corporate governance practices, namely, mandatory code
provisions that listed companies must comply with or explain their
non-compliance; and recommended best practices that listed
companies are encouraged to comply with but need not disclose any
non-compliance. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company has fully complied with the mandatory code provisions of
the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the Company’s
long-term corporate strategy, oversee the management of the Group,
evaluate the performance of the Group and assess the achievement
of targets periodically set by the Board. In addition, the Board has
established three Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee; and
has delegated to these Board Committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises seven Directors, of whom more than one-third
are non-executive and independent of the management. The Board is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the Group’s businesses. As at 31 March 2013, four of the Directors
are executive, namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman), Mr. Chan Kai
Fung (CEO), Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson;
and three of the Directors are independent non-executive, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this
annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board at all times met the
minimum requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one
such director with appropriate professional qualifications of
accounting or related financial management expertise. Both Mr. Yu
Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph have the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in the financial matters
required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence from the
Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum. Mr.
Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Chan Kai Fung, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and Mr. Chan
Wing Shing, Wilson are directors of a subsidiary or several subsidiaries
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy for
indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate activities. The
coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed
annually by the Company.
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TRERBE

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group's business
development, operations and financial performance. Notice of at least
fourteen days is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings.
All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a
schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors have
access to the Board papers and related materials, and are provided
with adequate information which enables the Board to make
informed decisions on the matters to be discussed and considered at
the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice. To facilitate the decision-
making process, the Directors are free to have access to the
management for enquiries and to obtain further information, when
required, and the Directors can obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 9 full Board meetings and two
general meetings, ie. the annual general meeting (“AGM") and an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM"), were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors to the Board meetings and general
meetings are as follows:

Number of
full Board
Meetings
attended

HEXRESS

Name of Director

Executive Directors: BITES:

Mr. YIP Mow Lum HiRmEsE

Mr. CHAN Kai Fung PRRE 52 4

Mr. KWOK Sze Chi MBBEE

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson BRI SE E

Independent Non-executive BAFHTES:
Directors:

Mr. YU Yun Kong REDM LA

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun BIE#ERT KA

Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph EEE LA

BRZRY

9/9
9/9
9/9
6/9

8/9
7/9
9/9

EEEER
i% BERILBOMATHEE  OWE8FRT
CEIRAREZ ERRE HERMBERE -
M EEMECHgR 2REFSRESD
tTMXBHN- - IECHESSSRIRAENZE
BARINHGHFEHRESSEL 28BESF
HMEREHESSNHRBEME - EREIRHE
EDER  FEECURREZEZTSSHTRR
AEZEEELNBRAE ESEC R THAD
ANEET  CAEFAUEZHABRMAMNNE
MEENHEHNESSSRTHE - AMRRKRE
FrE2R2RREREREREEENASHATR
ME—LER  EFNAHABLIEEATZE
R BREBRAREE-

BE_T=-"F=-A=+—BHLFE EFeC
BONRZBEEERAR_ABERKRE 8%
BERRAGREIRRAEG EENEEEY

FEMBERAGZ MFERFBWT -

Number of

general

Attendance meetings Attendance

attended
HERRAR
ZIRE

rate rate

100% 172 50%
100% 2/2 100%
100% 2/2 100%
67% 172 50%
89% 2/2 100%
78% 2/2 100%
100% 2/2 100%
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. In the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company arranged
for the Directors a seminar on the update of the Listing Rules and the
disclosure of inside information conducted by the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Directors are updated with latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time
to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all
other cases, an agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent in
full to all Directors in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days is
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. For all other Board meetings and Board committee
meetings, reasonable notice is given.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and
related materials at all times. From April 2012 onwards, all Directors
have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to keep them informed of the
Group's affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the
Listing Rules.

With effect from 1 April 2012, the Company provides all Directors
with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, financial
position and prospects.
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TEERHME

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years with effect
from 25 August 2010, which will automatically be renewable for one
successive year, and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving the other prior notice in writing (not
less than three months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Chan
Kai Fung; and not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson and Mr. Kwok Sze Chi). They are subject to retirement
from office by rotation at annual general meetings in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”).

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed
for a specific term. Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
have been appointed for a fixed term of three years with effect from
25 August 2010 and Mr. Szeto Wai Sun for a fixed term of one year
with effect from 25 August 2010, which has been extended for
further two years afterwards. Either the Company or any of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors may terminate the service by
giving the other party three months’ prior notice in writing. All three
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and are eligible for re-election at the annual general meetings
of the Company according to the provisions of the Articles of
Association.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if
there are not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, should retire from office by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board should hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

To ensure the Company operates according to the highest standards
of ethical conduct and professional competence, all Directors,
management and staff are required to strictly follow the Company’s
compliance manual (“Compliance Manual”) which places them under
specific obligations as to the ethics and principles by which the
Company's business is conducted. With reference to the applicable
regulatory guidelines and other industry best practices, the
Compliance Manual sets out ethical standards and values on topics
such as staff dealing in securities, anti-money laundering and personal
benefits.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip Mow Lum acts as
the Chairman of the Company, and Mr. Chan Kai Fung acts as the
CEO of the Company.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its
responsibilities and conforms to good corporate governance practices
and procedures. In addition, as the Chairman of the Board, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and that all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner. The
CEO is responsible for day-to-day management of the Group's
business, including the implementation of significant strategies
formulated by the Board.
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TRERBE

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun
Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph, none of
whom are involved in the day-to-day management of the Company.
Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
examining and studying the Company’s financial reporting system and
procedures for internal supervision and control, and making
recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the appointment
of external auditors and the fixing of the audit fee, etc.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 March 2013 included the review and, where applicable, approval
of:

the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2012;

o the interim financial statements of the Company for the six
months ended 30 September 2012; and

o the internal control system.
Two Audit Committee meetings were held in the year ended 31

March 2013. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Name of Director

Mr. YU Yun Kong (Chairman) FRAMEE(EE)

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun RIEHERT R
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph BRI L

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG"), be nominated for re-
appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EEg8T2ZE8"
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TR RREINEREMEERESEER
ExgRftER-
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Number of
Attendance rate

meetings attended

HESEZAE HE =
2/2 100%
12 50%
2/2 100%
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, including Mr.
Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yip Mow Lum is
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee was established to make
recommendations for all appointments, re-designations and
reappointments of Directors to the Board. It is also responsible for
determining the independence of each Independent Non-executive
Director and conducting a formal assessment on the effectiveness of
the Board as a whole, as well as determining the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including appropriate professional knowledge and industry
experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, as well as
time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee meets at
least once a year to review the structure, size and composition of the
existing Board, and to recommend to the Board the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board members and senior staff of the Company.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2013 included the review and, where applicable,
approval of composition of the Board and its committees.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held in the year ended 31
March 2013. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Name of Director

Mr. YIP Mow Lum (Chairman) ERMEE(FE)
Mr. YU Yun Kong REMITE

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun FITEMERT R

Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph edeih =S

REZEE

REZEGHNUEKEMAK  BEEFSEREE
EMEER=ZBBELIFATES RN EE - A
EHFTERERELE - ERMTEBREE
BgEFE-

RUREREGEEREFTZ —RME  AER
BEFHENESSRHUEZ -REZEETAE
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EEeARTIEMEZER - RAFBEEEZR
AN RAZESEZEZHRNE  BRAEER
HMBRATHEER  EARST  BE - BATER
REFRBRARR - REZEGBFRIBIT K
% UWREIREEFSZRE - ABKEMK -
VHEEEXERARASEBABZRE - AH
KA (BIEERE MR ER) MEEERH
et
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Number of
Attendance rate

meetings attended
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TEERHME

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto
Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, approving the
remuneration, determining the remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management and approving the compensation to Directors
and senior management on termination or dismissal, provided that no
Director was involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the year
ended 31 March 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements
in this annual report. The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence, as well as market trend. The Directors’ emoluments are
determined with reference to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and the prevailing market rates. The work
performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
March 2013 included the review and, where applicable, approval of
remuneration scheme of the Group; and revision of the remuneration
of all of the Directors.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in the year ended
31 March 2013. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out
as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. YU Yun Kong (Chairman) REAMEE (F/E)

Mr. YIP Mow Lum EERMEE
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun AIEHERT o
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph & BIE S A

FMESS
Yz EeRmmKEAEN  BREIFEEX
MEER=BBIFATEERYMEE - AR
AR T A 0% BB ST AR AR o AREDM ST AL R H B
ZEg®EF-

FHNZE e REBRIEFTRRAEEREZH
MBRERRBERNEESREES  HEFH &
TEREFNSREBEZFIERN  URILE
EENEREEERIERBHR BB ER 25
B HEEETE2EREEESHM -

RBE-_Z-—=F=A=t+—HIEFEZEFH
SHBENAFRY B HREMES - AEBEREEZ
e BRI RE 2 NE - BERENARTS
BEMEIL - EEME 2 EARARR 2 KEEE -
BARBEBRITHIEKFMETE - HFMEZEER
BE_ZT=F=-A=+t"HILFEZIEIE
BiEERE N (ER) B AL Z 3B HIE &
BEEMZ -

¥FEEerBE T =F="A=1T—HIF
BEHEFM—REH  FREENLERFHIIWT
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Number of
Attendance rate

meetings attended

HEEEZRE =
”n 100%
”n 100%
0/1 0%
”n 100%
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company, and of the results and cash
flow for that period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and has applied them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable, and has prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
He reports to Mr. Chan Kai Fung, CEO and Executive Director, and
assists the Board in functioning effectively and efficiently. All the
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at any time in relation to their duties and operation of the
Board. During the year ended 31 March 2013, he undertook not less
than 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and
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knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR SMEE R B EM

During the year ended 31 March 2013, KPMG, the external auditor of HZE-—Z—=F=A=+—HI-FE  K&EH

the Group, provided the following services to the Group: SNEERZ EENE 5 B ) AN E EIE A TR -

HK$°000

Service rendered Fris AR 35 FET
Audit services ERE
Annual audit FEEZ 1,117
Non-audit services FFEEEZX
Interim review F BRI R 202
Taxation service % AR 37
Total st 1,356
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for safeguarding the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets as well as for achieving the
objectives of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive internal control
system is established and implemented throughout the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2013 to meet the Group’s particular needs
and the risks to which it is exposed, and by its nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2013 and that it considers that the system is
reasonably effective and adequate. The review covered all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls and
the risk management function, as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to convene an extraordinary general meeting
and propose a person for election as a director. Please see the detailed
procedures as follows:

e the way in which shareholders can convene an

extraordinary general meeting:

Any shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may request the Board of Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The requisition, duly signed by
the shareholder(s) concerned, must clearly state the objects of
the meeting and must be deposited at the head office of the
Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements in accordance with
the requirements under Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of
Association once a valid requisition is received.
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the procedure for Director’'s nomination and election
by shareholders:

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the head office of the Company at
10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong (a) a notice signed by such shareholder (other than
the proposed person) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting of his/her intention to propose such person for election;
(b) a notice signed by the proposed person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected together with the information as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing

RREZBREZESHNERF :

IRERAEERREAE ERBEEMAT(R
TESHRINSERES ZREEAAR
m&m%#va%¢ RIEBEIEF 715K E
SEXNE108)RR () —HEZEBESM
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TN BEBNEE  URBEREZZ
ATZ2ENER - b)—HHAEREALES
iEs MR RELEERILT|FHIR(C LT
FANDE 1351 KR EETHENER X (0
WiREATREAMEBAERHREE -

Rules; and (c) a written consent by the proposed person for the
publication of his/her personal data.

M
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The period during which the aforesaid notices may be given
within the period of not less than 7 days commencing no earlier
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than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting TREGER  ZHBELEARTR - RUE
appointed for such election and ending no later than 7 days ZERMEEE  ARABEIBEETEH R
prior to the date of such meeting. The Company would take EEMEZHE -

appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements once
valid notices are received.

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries to the ZARARBOREMESSREHTMEESH - K
Board for the attention of the Company Secretary by post to the head HEAKZEEHFRBEEAANTENEE - &
office of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road E%EFE%?E%}EEP TR BREBREI10BRARIME
Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary would direct I - ARMEKIBW I N EAEEEETEBED
the enquiries received to appropriate Board Member(s) or the EEe@REXABEZZSEENIEHEETSWES
Chairman of the Board Committee(s) who is in charge of the areas of B @ FFIAERERIE - EFSEL A WERH
concern referred therein for further handling. The Board, assisted by T &S AL HRRINEEEREEEH o

the Company Secretary, would make its best efforts to ensure that all

such enquiries are addressed in a timely manner.
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TRERBE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has compiled a
Shareholders Communication Policy and established various channels
of communication with its shareholders, such as publication of interim
and annual reports, press releases and announcements of the latest
development of the Company in a timely manner. The annual general
meetings provide an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The Chairman and members of different Committees
are available to answer shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions
are proposed at annual general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors and
details of the proposed resolutions are set out in a circular.

The financial and other information relating to the Group has been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, while the
principal activity of the Group is the provision of financial services,
including securities broking, margin financing and commodities and
futures broking.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit for the year
contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 151.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) before dividend is HK$92,226,158 (2012:
HK$60,635,866) which have been transferred to reserves. Details of
movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 24(a) to the financial statements respectively.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of HK2.7 cents
per share, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 8 August 2013. If
approved, the final dividend will be paid on Thursday, 29 August
2013 to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on Tuesday, 20 August 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the meeting, from Tuesday, 6 August 2013 to Thursday, 8 August
2013 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 August
2013. The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at
10:00 a.m. on Thursday, 8 August 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, from Friday, 16 August 2013 to Tuesday, 20 August
2013 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15
August 2013. Shares of the Company will be traded ex-dividend as
from Wednesday, 14 August 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 24(a) to the financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 24(a) to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2013, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately HK$280.7
million (2012: HK$193.6 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$160,000 (2012: HK$239,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the “Five-year
Financial Summary” section on page 152 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities,
other than as an agent for clients of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 August 2010, the Company conditionally approved and adopted

a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling

the Group to grant share options (the “Options”) to selected

participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Group. The major terms of the Scheme are set out as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The participants included any employees (whether full time or
part time), executives and officers (including Executive and Non-
executive Directors), shareholders, suppliers, customers,
consultants, advisors, business or joint venture partners,
franchisees, contractors, agents or representatives of any
members of the Group;

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) provided that the
Company may seek approval from its shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme was
66,680,000 shares. However, the maximum number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other share option scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the Company’s issued share capital from time to time;

No Options may be granted to any one person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options granted and to be granted to that person in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1%
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time;

There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised save as determined by the Board of
the Company and provided in the offer of grant of Options;
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(vi)

Subject to the terms of the Scheme where any offer of an
Option is proposed to be made to any Director, Chief Executive
or Substantial Shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates, such offer must first be approved by the
Independent Non-executive Directors; where any grant of
Options to a Substantial Shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates, would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
Options already granted and to be granted (including Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

° representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in
issue; and

o having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each offer, in excess of HK$5
million;

then such further grant of Options must be approved by
shareholders;

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the grantee for a period of 28 days from the
offer date. An Option shall have been accepted by the grantee
and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company on or before 30 days after the offer
date. Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable;

(vi)
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(vii)

(viii)

HE

The Board shall not make an offer to grant any Option under
the Scheme after a price sensitive event has occurred or a price
sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision until such
price sensitive information has been announced in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. In particular, no
Option shall be granted on any day on which the Company’s
financial results are published and (a) during the period of 60
days immediately preceding the publication date of its annual
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
financial year up to the publication date of the results; and (b)
during the period of 30 days immediately preceding the
publication date of its quarterly results (if any) and half-year
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
quarterly or half-year period up to the publication date of the
results;

The exercise price of an Option shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of:

. the nominal value of a share;

o the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and

o the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date;

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from 25 August
2010.

Other particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding TREBARRIESE - FTEES - BRI NASRE
Options held by the Directors, certain employees, consultants and  RIEZEFAEARBR Z RKITEEREREE —
contractors of the Company under the Scheme and its movement ZT—=S£=A=+—HIFZEE 2 F8FE
during the year ended 31 March 2013:

Options
adjusted Options
Options (T during the held at
held at granted Options Options Options Year 31 March Original  Adjusted o
1 April 2012 during exercised cancelled lapsed (Note) 2013 exercise exercise —
RZB-2f the Year during during during KEER R-B-zf Price price 2
A-H KEER the Year the Year the Year #%2z =A=1-A (Note) (Note) Date of Exercise Vesting 8'
b2 Btz AEERTE REEARE AFERXH BRE KEZ RAKE SEEGRE grant period conditions a
BRE BRE ZBRE  ZBRE  2ERE () BhRE (W) (W)  RHAH s BER# -
HKS HK$ D
A7 A 3
—+
Executive Directors:
47E3: bkt
Mr. Yip Mow Lum - - - - - - - - - - - - “Hﬂ
Mr. Chan Kai Fung 2,000,000 - (2,068,000) - - 68,000 - 0.69 067  13/102011  13/10/2011- Nil %:%-
R 12102013 Off
F-% ZT—-f i
tA+=R tAt=RZ
“T-=f
TA+z8
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi 2,000,000 - - - - 68,000 2,068,000 0.69 067 13/102011  13/10/2011- Nil
FBREE 12102013
- ZE2—-f E
tAt=R fAt=RZ
“I-=F
TA+ZH
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson 400,000 - (213,600) - - 13,600 200,000 0.69 067 13/102011 13102011~ Ni
CuEiha 12/1002013
2-f 3% Eid
TAt=H TAT=RE
“3-=F
tA+zA
Independent Non-
Executive Directors:
BUFHGES
Mr. Yu Yun Kong 666,000 - - - - 22,644 688,644 0.69 067  13/102011  13/102011- Nil
FOREL 12/1012013
I ZZ—-f% Ed
1Atz fAf=RZ
2=
tA+ZA
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Options

adjusted

Options Options during the
held at granted Options Options Options Year

1 April 2012 during exercised cancelled lapsed (Note)

Options

held at
31 March Original ~ Adjusted
2013 exercise exercise

W=2-ZF  theYear during during during  AEER W-Z-=F Price price

HA-H KEER theYear the Year the Year B&2 =A=t-H (Note) (Note) Date of Exercise Vesting

a2z Ritz FEERE FEEREE FEERXHN R
R BRE  ZBRE  ZBRE  ZBRE (¥)

KBz RAKE SHRGEE grant period  conditions
B (H&) (W)  RERH k8 BERH

HKS HKS
AT BT
Independent Non-
Executive Directors:
BIFHTES
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun 666,000 - = - - 2,644 688,644 0.69 067 13102011 13/1002011- Nil
AftER T 12102013
Ff ZE-f Eid
tBtZR fAtzRZ
5%
i |
Mr. Ling Kok Fai, Joseph 666,000 - - - - 2,644 688,644 0.69 067 131002011 13/1002011- Nil
REERE 121012013
5% ZF——F Eid
TA+=H TATZRE
—5-cF
L
Employees 6,370,000 - (2,553,440) - (856,120) 193800 3,154240 0.69 067 13102011 13/1002011- Nil
&8 12102013
5% ZF——f E:d
tA+=H fAt=ZRE
—3-z%
TAt+=8
Consultants and 3,500,000 - (2,068,000) - (500,000) 102,000 1,034,000 0.69 067 13102011 13/1002011- Nl
Contractors 1211012013
BERAR F-f ZF—-F Eid
1Atz fAfzRZ
“E-=F
+A+zA
16,268,000 - (6,903,040 - (1356,120) 51332 852,17
Notes: Btat -

The exercise price and the number of Options were adjusted with effect from
6 August 2012, upon allotment and issue of rights shares to the shareholders
of the Company, as announced by the Company on 3 August 2012.

As at 31 March 2013, Options to subscribe for a total of 8,522,172
shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme remained
valid and outstanding and the Options representing approximately
0.8% of the total number of issued shares as at the date of this
report.
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TR 1B 5490.8%
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013 are set out
in note 18(a) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the percentage of the Group's
turnover attributable to the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients in aggregate were 1.9% and 6.0% respectively. The Group’s
principal activities are providing securities, commodities and futures
brokerage services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has no major
suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal activities of
providing securities, commodities and futures brokerage services.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, none of the Directors or any
of their associates or any shareholders which to the best knowledge
of the Directors, who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 22 to the
financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to ensure
that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they receive
appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

Details of the Director's emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

B B X &

R-F-—=F=ZA=1T—BARAMNBRRZ
IBE H TR 18(a) ©

FEEFR
REBEZE-ZZ—=F=A=+—H1EFE &x5H
BABEPRAAREFPEREAEB 2 EEE DA
1.9% [ 6.0% c AEE EFEXEBFRIZEHES
AR AESLERY EF2RE ERNETEE
ZEEERRTERES EonkHELLRTS -
Eb A Ew 2 4tEn o

RBE_Z—=F=-A=+t—HILFE BEF
PrEl BIBEFEHEMAREZBEATHERMRK
RFEARRARDETHRABIBS%E)NAEE
ERREAEPHHEEEZ

EENHRERB P &R

R-F-—ZF=A=+—HB HEEFNMIWE
ERMEAAEEEBBRSFRRBRHF 2
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kai Fung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chan
Kai Fung, Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai,
Joseph will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of
them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company at the date of this annual report are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages
40 to 45 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employing company within one year
or with payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” below,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

E
FERREZAREDS  AARZEEA

HTESE:
BERMELE (E/E)
PRERIE SE 4 (7T B4 L)
FEREE

BYEBITES:
REIMISE A
AR Bt

I BE S

RBARREABERAY - REREEE - BROKH
SERZBESE A BN EERRBERE LRIE -
BEHNRERTFBERERET -

RAFHAY  ARAZEZRSRERE 2B
BERAFREIOZISEZ [EEREREERE
Z ] —&f e

ESZRBiH=H

FIBEERRRITCRRBFAG LBESEECE
= BRERNRBREKE QBRI ZEMR—F
ARBER L HREFEEHEINEAZNER
METAIRIEZRIEEH -

EENERGHZER

BRIX [HERS/ HERERS ] —HMtas
S REREIAFREMER  ARF - HER
RE - HEEMMEARRE R RN B R RRE
RAEBERITLENESTERKREABEAN
BmZEH -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy Agreements

The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements (as the
tenant) with some connected persons, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the

Listing Rules:

Transaction
x5

(Note 1)
(Bit1)

Tenancy made on 1 June 2010
(monthly rental: HK$670,000)
(Note 3)

RZE-ZTFRA—-BITLZEH
(A : 670,000 %)

(Hit3)

Tenancy made on 1 March 2010
(monthly rental: HK$160,000)
RZE-FF=R—HiIu2iH

(A7 : 160,000 #7T)

Tenancy made on 15 February 2013
(monthly rental: HK$300,000)
(Note 4)

R-ZE-ZF-A+RA:Y
2184 (A - 300,000 #7)
(Kt 4)

Tenancy made on 15 April 2010
(monthly rental: HK$90,000)
(Note 5)

RZE-ZFWA+RALY
ZF# (A7 + 90,000 BT)
(Hfzt5)

Name

of counterparty

RaHAE
(Note 2)
(FaE2)

Victory Beauty Limited
as the landlord

RBBERAAEREE

Well Point Limited
as the landlord

AREERAREAET

Well Point Limited
as the landlord

ARBERDAEREE

Sea Magic Limited
as the landlord

PEBRATEREE

Term
of agreement

[E =

RERS HEREXS

HE

AEE (EARF) RBEA LT ETRE
5% - UL R AR LR AIE T A
B BERMERS

Amount for
the Year

TERAE
HKS$

S —
27T

Address of premises

Wt it

9 June 2010 to 10/F, Wing On House, 7,867,097
31 March 2013 71 Des Voeux Road
“Z-EEXANBE Central, Central,
ZE—=F=A=+—H HongKong
BEPIREHET 1R
XZEERE108
1 March 2010 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 1,688,296
28 February 2013 58-60 Queen’s Road Central,
“Z-TF=-A—-HZ 13-17 Stanley Street,
“Z-=%-A=F/\H Central, Hong Kong
BEPRIANE 13175
SRAES 58-605%
RAXEREE
1 March 2013 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 300,000
31 March 2013 58-60 Queen's Road Central,
—E-=F=A-HZ 13-17 Stanley Street,
ZZ-=F=H=1—H Central Hong Kong
BERRERELARE
13175 ERAET
58-60 SEIRAXEEE
15 April 2010 to G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 141-145 1,052,113

31 March 2013

~2-FFNATEAS

Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po,
New Territories, Hong Kong

“T-=F=A=1-RB BEMRAHERE

141-145 =30 T R EE
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Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman, Executive
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company (“Mr. Yip“).

Tenancy was renewed on 15 February 2013 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016 (monthly rental:
HK$800,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 15 February 2013 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016 (monthly rental:
HK$300,000).

Name Term Amount for
Transaction of counterparty of agreement Address of premises the Year
x5 REHE ik LIE3::b rEEER
(Note 1) (Note 2) HK$
(FizE1) (Hizt2) BT
Tenancy made on 28 February 2011 Top Sunshine Development 16 March 2011 1/F, Golden Hill 1,080,000
(monthly rental: HK$90,000) Limited as the landlord to 15 March 2014 Commercial Building,
(Note 6A) ARBEEERAF (Note 6B) Nos. 39-41 Argyle Street,
WZE-——FZAZF+/\BilxL ER%EE —Z——%®ZA+/"HE  Kowloon, Hong Kong
ZHEHI (A7 - 90,000/ 7T) “Z-ME=A+HR BENEREZHE
(Histes) (KiteB) 9-NFEIBERE 18
Tenancy made on 13 October 2011 Resultever Limited 13 October 2011 Cockloft no. 1-6 & Shop No. 7 1,190,000
(monthly rental: HK$105,000) as the landlord to 31 March 2013 on G/F, Tak Lee Building,
(Note 7) Resultever Limited “E——F No. 993 King's Road,
W-E——F+ATZHIu2lY (FA%EE +A+=ZHZ Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
(A : 105,000 #7) —ZT-=% BEBRRELE 9935
(Hizt7) =A=+-8 ERE -6 HEER
75%0A
Tenancy made on 16 October 2012 Fortunate State Limited 17 October 2012 Shop 7, GfF, 3,507,167
(monthly rental: HK$660,000) as the landlord to 16 October 2015 Whole of Mezzanine Floor and
(Note 8) ERERARERET —E-—F 1st Floor of Honour House,
ek o R WA= v TAtLREZE Nos 375-381,
M4 (A : 660,000 B7L) “T-F1F Nathan Road, Kowloon
(Hrit8) +A+7<H NEERRUE375-381 5%
SEBAEMT79E
HER1E2E
TOTAL 16,684,673
@t
Notes: Bt -
1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees and rates. 1. RHETBEEREREM-

2. FBARARAER  RITERREBRBR
EEMELE(EEED ZBMBEAL -

3. R-ZE-—=F_"A+FARBEITHY %z
FHPAT——ENA-—BE_ZT—F
=HA=+—H (A : 800,000#x) °

4., RIZE—=ZF_A+RAETHY  Hz
FHE-T—=—FMNA—HE-_ZT— F
=A=+—8 (A :300,000%&7T) °
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6A.

6B.

Tenancy was renewed on 15 February 2013 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016 (monthly rental:
HK$130,000).

The existing tenancy was superseded by a new tenancy on 15
February 2013 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2016 (monthly rental: HK$135,000). Save for the
extension of the term and increase in monthly rental, the other
material terms and conditions of the new tenancy remain the
same as the existing tenancy.

The period relevant to the continuing connected transaction
commenced from 30 December 2011.

Tenancy was renewed on 15 February 2013 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016 (monthly rental:
HK$130,000).

A supplemented agreement was entered on 15 February 2013,
which extended the expiry date of the existing tenancy from 16
October 2015 to 31 March 2016 (monthly rental: HK$660,000).

The annual cap for the Year was HK$17,080,000 and thereunder
for each of the three financial years ending 31 March 2014, 2015
and 2016 are HK$25,860,000, HK$25,860,000 and
HK$25,860,000 respectively.

6A.

6B.

RZZE—=FZATHBEAY Bz
FHET—=—FMNA—HE-_ZT— %
=A=+—8(AH : 130,000/&7T) °

RAEBROR-_T—=F_A+HAE—H
HHMBAK BEFUR-—F—=FM0A
—BEZZ-—R"F=ZA=+—H(AM:
135,000/870) - BAELERG R ENE AE
2O HAEAY 2 H M KRR AR AT M
EIREHAHER -

FABEWNERSA_T——F+_H
=+HRM% -

R-Z—=F_"A+HBETHY Bz
FHPA_T—-ZFENA—HE_ZT—RE
=A=+—HB(AM : 130,000x) °

R-_E—ZF-_A+AHBFIHERRE
BREHEOZERBEPH - —RE+A
+RBBEE-_FT—X"F=A=+—8(A
fH : 660,000/87T) °

NEEZFE LR A17,080,000% T 0 M
BE-_ZT—ME . —ET—RER-_T—RF
ZA=t+—HL=AVBRFESE2EF L
IR 2 Bl /25,860,000 7T - 25,860,000
£ 1% 25,860,000 7 7T ©
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2.

Financial Services Agreements

Name of
connected person
BEALHSZ

Mr. Yip and his associates being
his sons and certain private
companies controlled by Mr. Yip,
together as “Mr. Yip's Group”

EREREBEAL(BARTR
BRERHZETUART) -
Gl EEERE]

Madam Hung Seu Ying
("Madam Hung")
kbRt ([Rkt])

smp

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
("Mr. Wilson Chan") and his
associate being his wife,
together as “Mr. Wilson Chan's
Group”

BoxH gL (TRKEEE]D R
EMEAL (BIEEF) 68
[BoKH ST ESE

Sub-total of Mr. Yip's Group,
Madam Hung and Mr. Wilson
Chan’s Group (together
“Mr. Yip's Family”)

RERARE gt RRxasE
S8 oM BRERK] NG

Annual cap

FELR

IPO Annual Cap
BERLAREFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BERRABEEFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
HFREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BERLABREFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREELR

IPO Annual Cap
BRRAREFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

Amount for
the Year
XEELHE

HK$
BT

221,600,000

31,200,000

24,600,000

82,400,000

20,000,000

266,200,000

113,600,000

& B AR 7 160

Payment from/

to the Group
AEEEH/
HFEEEzEH

Advance from the Group
REB 28K

Advance from the Group
TEEZ BN

Interest paid to the Group
XN TFAEEZFIE

Advance from the Group
KEE B

Advance from the Group
TEEZ BN

Interest paid to the Group
INFREEZFIE

Advance from the Group
REBZBH

Advance from the Group
AEB2 2%

Interest paid to the Group
IR FAEEZFIS

Advance from the Group
TEEZ BN

Advance from the Group
AEE B

Interest paid to the Group
XN TFAEEZAE

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13

Maximum
amount
Amount for
the Year
REEAE
HK$
BT

for the Year

105,338,718

502,467
23,406

836,348
214

105,338,718

502,467
23,620



Name of
connected person

BEALHSR

Mr. Chan Kai Fung (“Mr. KF Chan")
and his associates being his wife
and sister, together as
“Mr. KF Chan's Group”

RREE L L ([RENEEE]) R
HBMEA(THEZFRE)
Gl [REE LA ]

Mr. Kwok Sze Chi (“Mr. Kwok")
BEATE(HDEE])

Amount for
the Year

FEESH
HK$
BT

Annual cap
EELR

IPO Annual Cap 49,900,000
BRAAABEEE LR

Margin Annual Cap 1,400,000
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000
BERDABREFE LR

Margin Annual Cap #
ARFELR

# The annual cap is set at the de minimis threshold.

Notes:

EYIT]

Payment from/

amount

for the Year
rEE
BEeH
HK$

BT

to the Group
AE@EXf/
HFEEEzEHE

Amount for
the Year
KEEMAE
HK$

=
BJL

Advance from the Group 23,845,512

REB BT

Advance from the Group 1,289,373

TEEZ BN

Interest paid to the Group 11,539
INTFAREEZFIE

Advance from the Group 1,831,780

REBZBHR

Advance from the Group 669,657

KEEZ BT (Note 2)

Interest paid to the Group (Hit2) 2,669

SN FAEEZFI S
# FELRTENSEHLE -

st -

1.

Mr. Yip, Mr. Wilson Chan, Mr. KF Chan and Mr. Kwok are
Executive Directors of the Company. Madam Hung is a director
of Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited and Bright Smart
Securities International (H.K.) Limited and mother of Mr. Yip. Mr.
Wilson Chan is a nephew of Mr. Yip.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
were of the opinion that the transaction was on normal
commercial terms where all of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than the profits ratio) on an annual basis calculated under
the Listing Rules were less than 5% and the annual consideration
was less than HK$1,000,000. The transaction was thus exempted
from the reporting, annual review announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.33(3)(c) of the Listing Rules.

1.

BRE  BROKMEE  BREREEERTDE
ERADRMITESE - RR LT RBAKRE
BERERARES BARBFBER(EE)
ERARBERERLEZEH - BOKHE
EREFREZING

EEZ(REBYIHFNTES)RE  ZERX
SR —MEERKET MEEFER
WERBE EMGAIFEZEAT D= (B
BRI HLR5%  BEEREIR
1,000,000 7T - Bt - ZIEX S E# R
WP AR B 14A33)(0) (&2 B3R - FE
Bz DM RBREALEZIRE
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3. Brokerage Services Agreements 3. REERBHER
The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income paid KEE - AEBEATHAEBRME 2 &4
by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage services RS FTS EaB WMABESH T ¢

provided by the Group for the Year are set out as below:

Amount for
Name of connected person Annual Cap the Year
o BEALTHE FELR AEERE
I
s}
—+
o
a\
o .
) Mr. Yip’s Group # 181,493
o =
o S e L]
—
Madam Hung 1,050,000 -
ARZr &
Mr. Wilson Chan'’s Group # 1,012
BOK I EEE
Sub-total of Mr. Yip’s Family 1,490,000 182,505
855 Rt
Mr. KF Chan’s Group # 52,838
PRERIE % A = B
Mr. Kwok # 17,549
A
# The annual cap is set at the de minimis threshold # FEEERENKIERERE
Note: The amounts of brokerage commission income payable for the Wiat - ()RR B T E 2 R FE &L A AT
Year by (i) Madam Hung did not exceed HK$1.05 million; (ii) B1I0SEEBIT: ()G EihEE
except for Madam Hung, each of the other connected persons FEATFBAN 2 AEEL LM BAT
did not exceed the de minimis threshold; and (iii) Mr. Yip’s Family BBEREEAREE M) EXERKMTZ
did not exceed HK$1.49 million. AFEELLASIMATERI4OFEET

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13



Shareholder’s financial assistance

On 13 June 2012, Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a new loan facility letter with China
Finance (Worldwide) Limited ("CFW"), a company which is
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yip, for provision of an
increased revolving loan facility from HK$310,000,000 to
HK$600,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for BSSI's general working
capital purpose. The maximum loan amount drawn during the
Year is HK$410,000,000 (2012: HK$280,000,000). Interest
expense of HK$3,270,149 was paid to CFW during the Year
(2012: HK$3,145,095). The loan bears interest at HIBOR plus
2.75% per annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand. As
at 31 March 2013, BSSI has drawn HK$100,000,000 (2012:
HK$180,000,000) under this facility.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, were of the opinion that the entering into the
aforesaid facility letter and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were on normal commercial terms and were fair and
reasonable and was for the benefit of the Group and no security
over the assets of the Group was granted in respect of the
transactions. The transactions were thus exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A .65(4) of the
Listing Rules

Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group;

(b)  conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favorable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and

BRERZBEEL

R-ZZE——FXA+=H  BABHERE
B)ERAR([BAFSR] ARRZEES
BB AT AR B (B ) AR AT ([
E%| BEAE2EEBESREZAR) R
MERBE KT - AR BB EGERRA
FHIRHIEIRE R EVE £ 310,000,000 % 7T
# % 600,000,000 7L AE—MEEEZ
& o FAFTIRN &A= & A410,000,000
7 0 ( = Z — — £ : 280,000,000 JT ) °
F AR F 2 F 2 3,270,149 7
JT(=ZT— = :3,145,0958 1) - EFIL
BEBBITREFRBIN2.75% FF R 8
REEMRARERERE RZT—=F
“A=+—8B BIEHERBEER@ME
#2 BX #£100,000,000/8 ;w( = & — = F :
180,000,000387T) °

EX(BRBLIFNTESR)RA 7l bt
BE R REBATRET ZRZIRE—R
BRIERF L UBAFARIE  AREAE
B ARTERZERZEMRAREE
o Bt ZERZ A ERRET LA
5 14A65(4) 152 B ¥l ~ i S 38 3 B R At
HEZIRTE °

REREX S 2 FER

BIFATESCD R LI BRERSY

ERAERS

AEEZBER —REFBIETR

z
(Sg2:4

() B—REAXGRIRTERAEELG
FTRKBEBIUE=F ZIGFET &
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(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the section
headed “Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 69 to 76, have complied with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(0 RERBEEHZ BAFAERT
BARRABIREBAN G 2 FRETAL

RARZBEIE BRI  UREFBEZE
BE#ERIZE 3000 5% [ BN BB EV B ER
MINZ BRI W2REEGHMAE
M2 BEREAE 74058 [FAN BB TR
AP it 45 48 RS X 5 VR BRAD e 1 | SRR &
B HBEHERSIEHRSE - RBEXR LT
MEIE14A38 1% - mBEE A B A EE
B HERER S BERER N AEWR
BHHEAHBREERZ MY - RARIEM
B RX PR A AZ BAD (R B AR ©

BAEALRS
AEBRAFEBBRPETZENFAEALTR
S BHNRE M EMEMTE29M - BIF LT
MANBKRER S, HERERS (HNF9E
T76E [RER S HERER S| —8) 2% %50
BEATRSEETLEMRAE14AZE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S BEERTHRABRAROREBERG 2
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING R
SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the Directors and the Chief Executive Officerof W—-ZE—=F=F=+—H XA RIESRITH
the Company and their respective associates had the following #HEEESH ZBMEANKR T 20 RIEHE
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as &AL g Mz SRR EGESR
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant  ERE &1 )28 352 (&R B E 17 2 & o N ED 8% sk

to section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or  1R#E( F BT AEEHITE AT H 2 IEESFA) E
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange ([{Z%<pRI|)BHE@ KA REBHAEXLSAA a
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors  [RA @] ([HE3ZAT]) 2 fERR - 8
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"): ;6
5
(A) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (A) REATRGORAEBRG ZER %
Company :
i
Approximate Ll
percentage of
the issued
share capital
Long/ Number of HERITRAEZ
Name of Director Nature of interest short positions shares BRBEDL
EEgE EEtE #RE ROEE (%)
Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note) Interest in a controlled Long position 675,000,000 65.5%
BRMEE (MaE) corporation HE
A ERER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 79,618,000 7.7%
BIRMEE EmlaA [S=)
Mr. Chan Kai Fung Beneficial owner Long position 834,000 0.08%
PRER I %2 A4 EmEaA o=}
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi Beneficial owner Long position 300,000 0.03%
BIREE EmfEBEA e
Note: The 675,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings Hfat - 675,000,000 A% A% 17 B ET R BRI AR B IR A A
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the (BEFEFREIMEERBRA 2 AT
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed A Bl EEMEERRARZER
to be interested in these shares. PR REEER
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the BREXHEEN RZE—=F=A=+—
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their B ARRAISES  THRHIEESEZ
respective associates had any interest or short positions in the H8 A T EEA QT S EEAEEEAE (R
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or (FEHRHEERINDEXVIIEZER) 2K
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part 1~ AEERRAD S E 5 B E A R 30%
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by B MzERDl A eRKESMPE
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as EBINEIRGREAET 2B MRARE
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange 8 - SRIRIBIRAESTRIZA MG AR R 6] KB P
pursuant to the Model Code. R ©

BAIBHEMEBERLRT ¢ —T——/ —=FFH
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(B) Share options (B) HEARAE
The interests of the Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the EERITHBHER AR AREREZERZNE
share options of the Company are detailed in the section 62 66 B [fEAREL 8] —&hrit -

headed “Share Option Scheme” on page 62 to 66 of this
annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the br ECRT#E RSN - REREMAER  S8FF

) Directors and Chief Executive Officer (including their spouses RITHEH (BEESE 2B LR RIS
~ and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had FLO)BERAE - ERNITETAIREGES
g* been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or MEAEEBINE T H E A :RE A Q Al sk E A7
A warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company or its BORABE D (SRREESES - @A) 2
z associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the FEFI] o
3 SFO.
pm

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERRARQFRAE Pz R%

o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARE =
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2013, the interests of substantial shareholders in the W—ZT—=F=F=+—H  BE(EEREEK
shares or the underlying shares of the Company which were required  II)E XV E 2 R E3IHMEMLARAT) - HED
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part  $EARIE(E A R EEF)YFE 336 G REBER
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register 7 &0 7 A A TIIRD S IEFERD ~ E ERREH#E
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO  zF4AK :

were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
share capital
Long/ Number of HERITRAEZ
Name of shareholder Nature of interest short positions shares BHABRDL
RREHE s BRE ROEE (%)
New Charming Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long position 675,000,000 65.5%
FRAERER AR Ema A S
Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note) Interest in a controlled Long position 675,000,000 65.5%
TR (HaE) corporation g
R EERER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 79,618,000 7.7%
HRMTE Emla A S
Notes: The 675,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited, ~ #/# 675,000,000 f& i {5 a1 REAZEIRE R AR (E =
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman of the EEIRERMEELEREZARNIEE - Bt -
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to be interested in these HEERMEEREABRZER DR EEEL -
shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, there was no other
person who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors, as at the date of
this report, there has been sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 46 to
58 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs. KPMG, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG as the independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BEXHEIN R-F—=F=ZA=+—H #
EHEAMALTRARRBMDLAABEBOT - HAR
BA(EFREGROIDEXVIE2 RE3IDIMHRTE
ARARREHE - RO CHERRIEES LB F
{5I1)5E 336 1R EREF 2B - ANEMT
EWAL-RANCIIE EoSs AR O 50 v

REARFRE

BEARTTREZ AREAHRBEFEHA
BEAHREAS  KAARAEBITROTELS
25% MARHE - HALTRAFMBEZTEA

BHRBEL -

EEEH

AEEAL B LR FEERNRTNBEHERMNE
BEXBABIEERITHAL

ERER
ARRMRM 2 EBCEEAFABRNAFRE
46 ES8E Y [EERHE] 5 -

BMFHITES 2B ERER

ARRERESBIIFNTESZFERRE
HRRENES LTRANEINGRZBEILE - AR
ARRERBYIFNTESTHRBIAL

B % HED
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they
are advised to consult an expert.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 March
2013, the Board of Directors has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy
at any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kai Fung
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
18 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % BE R

N

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities and Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 83 to
151, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

BEAELZETHEMERITARRZ
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BITERTESFEREEERARTERAR]D R
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR R S TTES o

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2013 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FE—=F=HA=1—HILFE(LETIIT)

Turnover M 3 273,280,728 228,707,159
Other revenue Ho e 4 57,723,850 36,971,598
Other net gain/(loss) Hapless /(Ei8) /558 5 345,002 (759,801)
331,349,580 264,918,956

Staff costs BIAAR 6(b) (85,077,866) (74,719,545)
Depreciation e (12,856,938) (10,588,179)
Other operating expenses Hi & &M 6(c) (109,456,073) (93,719,607)
Profit from operations KEER 123,958,703 85,891,625
Finance costs B 75 B 2N 6(a) (16,807,289) (12,541,095)
Profit before taxation BRB AT R A 6 107,151,414 73,350,530
Income tax FTig®i 7 (14,925,256) (12,714,664)
Profit and total comprehensive 25 IR SR PEAL S OB A

income attributable to equity REHEKHEEH

shareholders for the year 92,226,158 60,635,866
Earnings per share SRERN
Basic (cents) FLA (1) 11 10.18 8.92
Diluted (cents) e () 11 10.17 8.89

The notes on pages 89 to 151 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends declared for the year are set out in note 24(b)(i).

2£89% 151 EZW&%EX&I:%EM%W%EEP% e

FARNTIRARE ZFFIBEHFKIE 24(b)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B EISIRR &

n‘/-F

At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZF—=F=F=+—HXETIITF)

()

% Non-current assets IRBEE

o

= Fixed assets Bl E & E 13 25,708,281 26,197,007

—

o} Deferred tax assets FIEFRIEE B 23(b)(ii) 315,065 =

v Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 14 47,425,157 8,490,032

=1

)

r3|> Total non-current assets FRBEELE 73,448,503 34,687,039

=4

el Current assets RBEE

-

I

% Accounts receivable FEURBR TR 15 2,705,904,441 1,145,959,330

(@)

oy Other receivables, deposits and HihEWFIE « %

s prepayments RIBRFRIE 16 25,768,968 12,479,669

£. Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 17(a) 381,477,585 397,052,989

=

S

" Total current assets REBEEHAE 3,113,150,994  1,555,491,988

SIS e

o>

@ Current liabilities REBEE

S8

== Accounts payable JE 1+ BR 3K 19 614,390,402 469,737,171

ca Accrued expenses and other payables FEETF S K EL b < 0B 20 21,574,316 17,687,699

%—H Bank loans WITET 21 1,690,000,000 425,000,000
Current taxation BNEAT 18 23(a) 3,132,700 3,763,141
Amount due to a related company FEN—REg5E IR 29(c)(iv) 100,000,000 180,000,000

_Total current liabilites ~~ #®Af/A® 000 2429097418 109,188,011
Net current assets RBEEFE 684,053,576 459,303,977
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABER 757,502,079 493,991,016
Non-current liability FREESF
_Deferred tax liabilities ~~~~~ BEHEAE 23000 26377 192,551

NET ASSETS EEFE 757,475,702 493,798,465
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EQUITY P
Share capital A% A 24 309,340,812 204,846,600
Share premium R% 154 (B 24 250,318,615 181,907,382
Merger reserve SREE 24 (19,999,991) (19,999,991)
Share option reserve B 24 1,687,341 3,427,420
Retained profits IRER & A 216,128,925 123,617,054
TOTAL EQUITY EmEE 757,475,702 493,798,465
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on &EEZEER T —=F XA+ /\ B AL RE
18 June 2013. iz -

Yip Mow Lum
ERM

Directors

EF

The notes on pages 89 to 151 form part of these financial statements.

Chan Kai Fung
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Statement of Financial Position

BAEE AR AR

At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-F—=F=A=+—HLETITF)

o Non-current asset FRBEE
—+
Q
=4 Investment in subsidiaries R E AR 21RE 18 3,804,037 4,089,750
=
)
=} Total non-current assets FRBEELE 3,804,037 4,089,750
@)
o,
) Current assets REBEE
5
Q
3 Amounts due from subsidiaries e N NI B 18(b) 661,040,877 395,999,992
o Cash and cash equivalents RNENRREEEBY 17(a) 7,019,340 3,058,959
o
0. Total current assets RBEEAE 668,060,217 399,058,951
= | e e AR e bl | D=EYR=R
=2
> Current liabilities A A
Som
=h Other payables E i fE A ROR 20 27,022 17,325
Nl Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BT B A RIFRIE 18(b) 66,000 1,271,713
g Bank loans RITER 21 80,000,000 -
o _Total current liabilites =~~~ w#EAf@#A® 0000000 8009302 1,289,038
_Netcurrentassets =~ #BREFE 00000 587,967,195 397,769,913
NET ASSETS EEFEE 591,771,232 401,859,663
EQUITY s
Share capital R& 2R 24 309,340,812 204,846,600
Share premium &k | 24 250,318,615 181,907,382
Share option reserve FENAS R 24 1,687,341 3,427,420
Retained profits 1R ER & A 30,424,464 11,678,261
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 591,771,232 401,859,663
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on &K&EZF@WN _ZT—=F 58+ \ B EIEE
18 June 2013. |z o
Directors
EF
Yip Mow Lum Chan Kai Fung

BEM R Rk e
89151 A MBI FMBHRERE D

The notes on pages 89 to 151 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T—=F=H=+—HIFFE(LETIT)

Share
Share Share Merger option Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
BA BB E EOifRE BRERE RE T ERAE
$ $ $ $ $ $
T T T T T T
) . ()
Balance at 1 April 2011 R-ZE——5WNA—H @)
2R 203,904,600 192,255,508 (19,999,991) 2,749,525 62,669,491 441,579,133 a
@)
Changes in equity for the year HEZ-Z——& a
ended 31 March 2012: =ZA=t+-RLEE o
ZREREE 8
Dividend paid during the year FRRMARE 24(b)(i) - (12,234,276) - - - (12,234,276) §
Shares issued under share ikt EET o
option scheme BBTRD 24(c)(i) 942,000 1,886,150 = (661,550) - 2,166,600 3
Profit and total comprehensive g | K& 2 s B 58 D)
income for the year - - - - 60,635,866 60,635,866 ,:_5,_
Equity-settled share-based B EE AR, (@)
payments BEM 7 I8 - - - 1,339,445 311,697 1,651,142 :;
>
Balance at 31 March 2012 R-B——F %
ZHA=t+-—Hz&H% 204,846,600 181,907,382 (19,999,991) 3,427,420 123,617,054 493,798,465 Q
Q
Balance at 1 April 2012 R-EB--FMA-H >
ZEE 204,846,600 181,907,382 (19,999,991) 3,427,420 123,617,054 493,798,465 _rQn
=
Changes in equity for the year HEZ—-Z—=# .:2‘
ended 31 March 2013: =ZA=+—HLEFE
ZRESEE S
Dividend paid during the year ~ EREATAR S 24(b)(ii) - (18,436,194) - - - (18,436,194) Al
Shares issued under share EARETEIET E>._
option scheme BETRG 24(c)(i) 2,070,912 4,008,491 — (1,454,366) - 4,625,037 oL
Shares issued under rights issue A% I8 N2 317 H 24(c)(i) 102,423,300 85,352,750 - - - 187,776,050 >(
Share issuance costs AR BEATR AR 24(c)(i) - (2513814) - - - (2513814 R
Profit and total comprehensive P il K 2 Tl Unzs @ 58 @
income for the year - - - - 92,226,158 92,226,158
Equity-settled share-based B EE AR, %—H
payments RERZRE = = = (285,713) 285,713 =

Balance at 31 March 2013 N-B—=f&
ZA=t—Hz&tH 309,340,812 250,318,615 (19,999,991) 1,687,341 216,128,925 757,475,702

The notes on pages 89 to 151 form part of these financial statements.  $89ZF 151 8 7 MsH#&ak Ik E IS MK A EH -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n‘/-.ﬁ IEI%/)“JE%

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FE—=F=HA=1—HILFE(LETIIT)

Q Operating activities RETH
S
6; Cash (used in)/generated from operations #& & 27 (FTA),/Fr53R 4 17(b) (1,354,466,805) 289,214,946
Q Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBEENEH (16,036,936) (9,609,384)
%
% Net cash (used in)/generated KeEES (FTA) g
O from operating activities RE&FHE (1,370,503,741) 279,605,562
I et R e T
2-'—) Investing activities REEE
s
A Payment for purchase of fixed assets BERETEENK (12,922,198) (14,210,677)
% Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBTEEEMSNIA - 270,000
3 Interest received 2 U & 28,206,745 14,138,618
2
Net cash generated from RETEMEELSTEHE
ki __Investing activitles el 15284547 U270
op
N Financing activities BMEEE
k>
5 Proceeds from/(repayment of) bank loans $R7T &IS58, () 1,265,000,000  (390,000,000)
(Repayment of)/proceeds from a related —ZREIERFEREFH),
company loan Fr 158 3008 (80,000,000) 180,000,000
Dividend paid BERRE (18,436,194) (12,234,276)
Interest paid 2F A (16,807,289) (12,541,095)
Proceeds from exercise of shares option 171 B A% #E AT 15 5038 4,625,037 2,166,600
Proceeds from rights issue 1?&%1,%5?}5%%#&1@ 187,776,050 -
Payment of share issuance costs AR TR (2,513,814) -

Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEERE(FTH)

__financing activities =~~~ ReF® 1339643790  (232,608,771)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERREZEBEYORD),/
and cash equivalents B INEEE (15,575,404) 47,194,732

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RIA—BZRE

RESZEEY 397,052,989 349,858,257

Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=1+—H2ZzR£
31 March RASZEY 17(a) 381,477,585 397,052,989
The notes on pages 89 to 151 form part of these financial statements.  5589% 151 B » M iH A It EH MR H P ZEH ©
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the
Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
August 2009 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Notes to the Financial Statements

LUpE RS ey IR

—REH
BIZESSMEBERAR([ARF] K=
ZTNFEN\RAENBREBERSHESEMSE22
BRAVE(—NAAR—FEZEN - BERE
B ERSHEFMKIAERE2ERA
7] o NN A) 2 i i = 5 & Floor 4, Willow
House, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand
Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands % —
T—=F=A=+—HIEFEZHFREWER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

—  Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transters of financial assets

—  Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred
tax: Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The impacts of the developments are discussed below:

— Amendments to HKAS 12 and Amendments to
HKFRS 7 have not yet had a material impact on the
Group's financial statements as these changes will
first be effective as and when the Group enters into
a relevant transaction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(o)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the
revision and future years if the revision affects both
current and future years.

Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13

(Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(f)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses as if they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities or business first
came under the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or business
are recognised at the carrying values prior to the
common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include the
results of each of the combining entities or business
from the earliest date presented or since the date
when combining entities or business first came
under the control of the controlling parties, where
this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the entities
or businesses had been combined at the previous
reporting date or when they first came under
control of the controlling parties, whichever is
shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(f)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,

using the straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives as follows:

— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and 3 years

— Motor vehicles 5 years
— Office equipment 5 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
— Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Operating lease charges

()

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group has the use of assets
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
accounts receivable and other receivables
Investments in subsidiaries and accounts receivable
and other receivables that are carried at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSFHBEm®

(Continued)
(f) Impairment of assets (Continued) () BEBERE)
(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and (i) REBATIZREUREKERS
accounts receivable and other receivables RAEMEWIEBE (E)
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is WFEEAZERE  £RE
determined and recognised as follows: EIBETERERMT ¢ 5
a
—  For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment — BRMEBRARZEEM o
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable = RERETIREN S
amount of the investment with its carrying 2(f)(ii) Pt 42 4% & 2 m] 45 (Bl :?.l
amount in accordance with note 2(f)(ii). The SHMAHREE . ZEE g-
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a = o AR M EE 20f) (i) Fr it =
favourable change in the estimates used to BREFErAWE &5 2 v
determine the recoverable amount in FPEIR BN EE - Bl e §
accordance with note 2(f)(ii). ENEEET 5= D
:
—  For accounts receivable and other receivables —  FUIREBEIHAK AT BR 2 FE U g..
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss BR R & H b & W 3R IB M
is measured as the difference between the T WMREEER R g
asset’s carrying amount and the present value BEEEREEREMAERG iﬁ
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at FARRReRERBELE ;UH
the financial asset’s original effective interest B RYBEERLER =
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed AR (L EREZEEE Bt
at initial recognition of these assets), where Bt E 2 BB FIR) AR IR 51
the effect of discounting is material. This o iR EEK AT R
assessment is made collectively where financial MEEEAERRE®
assets carried at amortised cost share similar FEIT (anas BRAR SR A L) B2
risk characteristics, such as similar past due I K 16 B & & 3R R E
status, and have not been individually assessed S BlelEErErT
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial il KREBRBT M ARE
assets which are assessed for impairment ZHBEEZAKRBE SR
collectively are based on historical loss NN EERBEFEEMU
experience for assets with credit risk mELABRI Y EE BT
characteristics similar to the collective group. BB RIKIE -
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 ERSHBE#®)

(f) Impairment of assets (Continued)

() BEERE#HE)
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(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and (i) REBATIZREUREKERS
accounts receivable and other receivables REMBEWIERE (E)
(Continued)

—  (Continued) —  (#)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods.

Impairment of fixed assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that fixed assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

J Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSFHBEm®

(Continued)
(f) Impairment of assets (Continued) (f) EEREGE)
(i) Impairment of fixed assets (Continued) (i) BlEZEREE)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A
reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior periods. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the period in which the reversals are
recognised.

(g) Accounts receivable and other receivables
Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially

recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised

cost using the effective interest method less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(f)(i)), except

where the receivables are interest-free loans made to

related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the

effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,

the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(f)(i)).

o HERBIEER
HEEXEMBREES
Bz REEBBEAK
Ol & &7 - RBIR 18 1 FERRR
BEER pREELEM
BRZBREBETNUD
B - AR IR B AL (3
—HEM) cBERMEE -
B EREES TS AR
EERNE AR A FE R H
ERAREREE (A E

E)°

e ROIBEER
A AEE AT E SR
BEthRAFEE - AlE
B ER AR - B O (E
&5 18 PR 58 1 HA ) 3f 48 T
RBEEERREEE
EEREE - RESRERE
B 7 HE 52 7% [ B T 5 A48

=

/|

o

E

(9) FEWBRF R H A B RRIE

TR WS R R e L At FE MR IR ) 2 2 F
EfER  HRAUERERNFXRE
SR AR R AR EBHESIAR (R
2(f)0)) - HEfHE RUGRIA S TRZEA
TZEBEEERMREER  RAR
FEXYTERERRI - RZZEBR
T FEUCRIR #2 A AR HNRR R AR ORL{E B
IR (LHEE2()3) -

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH

SlusuielllS |eldueul{ ayl O] S°10N

plan]
&SE
o
k-
>3d
l
-
p=lllg
l_H/




Notes to the Financial Statements

LUpE RS ey IR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 ERSHBE#®)

(h) ENRZRRHEMENRE
JEAT BRI S B At FE S SRR X i 2 F
ERER - ERAIRE AT AR - HE

(h) Accounts payable and other payables
Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised

cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the

HEMBREELTEK - BIRKAT
BE o

FFEEE
AREENTZ AR TFEREERSKX
AHER - S HERIEK - s ERMEER
BHERADR MOTHEIASEER
(B {8 {8 ] 2 1 ] 2= B8 5E R {7 FE A
MEREREEEHRNERNZE
FEREER

borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

(j) Cash and cash equivalents () BRERBEEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on ReRBeEEVRERTREFER
%ﬂ hand, and demand deposits with banks. S ULARSERASRITIEIR ©
N
P (k) Employee benefits k) EEER
% (i)  Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, () FHe FREL BHFFHB- M

TEBHEFCRAG B L 2 3K
FFEEBARARME B 1R HAERE

contributions to defined contribution retirement

il

plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are

accrued in the year in which the associated services R# 2z FEAE -
are rendered by employees.
(i)  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as (i WESBCGRFIEATESFEE

IR TE R R B AEEER 2
HRRELEREBRER QR

expense in profit or loss as incurred. & oo

required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance are recognised as an
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Employee benefits (Continued)

)

(i) The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the Black-Scholes model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-settled
share-based payment arrangements involving
employees of subsidiaries, the cost is recognised in
“Investment in subsidiaries” and credited to the
“Share option reserve” over the vesting period. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the
vested option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 ERSHBE#®)

() Income tax (Continued) () FE#H#E)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

2 ERSHBE#®)

)

FRi&®L (&)
RELEHBEEERABZ BRI
BRABRE: THNBAEREL TR
Z8 NP HER T E ST RERD
w2 BESRE(TBRGAHZE
D) AR EIR B HT B A B A B B
EH ONBERVER  UAKEA
22 1| 43¢ (O] B ] B2 AN K R] BEAE A 78 LR
KREECIZRERIR - RAEAIBERE
AIARTBEFE R KRB E Z R AR

EREAECEHESRREENRAER
HEZARERREETA - KAR
SR RO BEER N 2B RGFE o
BEREHRRABEENABEIT TR -

BEXERBAEEREER SRS AR
& WA BRREEA RERT G A
A B AR A M2 - RIZERIBUE
EHRREEREE - HWRAEREH
FERBUAF] - A SR A BRI o

A BB P EE AE BRSPS A T O AR
AR R Z B ERHER -
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSFHBEm®

(Continued)
() Income tax (Continued) ) FEFHH#E)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BIVEAFR 18 45 68 MORE R IR A R A R H
movements therein, are presented separately from each BB ORASAEY BT T -
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset MAEBEEAEITEEABNRRIEE
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets ERMAMBHEAE  AFAUTH
§ against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally PR AILABHARIIEEE RIEER
—+
@ enforceable right to set off current tax assets against BEEN KB IES ERELT
ol current tax liabilities and the following additional MIEEE:
= conditions are met:
o)
|
3 e in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the e BEAHIMBEEERAEBMmMS - A
= Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to EEF 2R FREELELE 7T
QL realise the asset and settle the liability FINEBECZRESERRE =X
A simultaneously; or
=
D
('BD . in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if o MELEHRBEEENAGGBEMS @
a.. they relate to income taxes levied by the same ZEEERAEHR T
taxation authority on either: R TINEREEER ERE
& 8
S
+HH . e N
EUH e the same taxable entity; or . FA—ERTHEEE : 3K
=
iy e different taxable entities, which, in each future e TRERHER MzE
period in which significant amounts of EREEERERER
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to ERBEAEXREEEATE
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the B W E 2 & @A K 2
current tax assets and settle the current tax M8 - f 5 sa A A= 35 B AR
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle & E NS ERHI 18
simultaneously. BE KEBETEER
BIE -
m) Provisions and contingent liabilities m EVE Ay =R
(m) Provisi d contingent liabiliti BRERIAEE

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

RASEERBEFFABEZNHE
EEME METZEERAEER
BN - BeEMEL A AR
75 3L HEE IS PR SRR 2 b B (R
REE - WERKEEEEAN AR
HBERTEITEEMBRX 2 RERE -
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(n)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised on a
trade date basis when the relevant transactions are
executed. Volume rebate to customers is recognised
as a reduction in brokerage commission income
when payment of the rebate is probable and the
amounts can be estimated reliably. The fair value of
the consideration received or receivable in respect of
the initial trade under customer loyalty programmes
is allocated between the award credits and other
components of the trade by reference to their
relative fair value. The award credits are deferred
and revenue is recognised only when the Group
fulfils its obligation to provide free or discounted
brokerage services.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iii) Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are recognised
when the related services are rendered.

2 ERSHBE#®)

(m) BERIREEE)

(n)

7 R EN SR Z ATREMERK
R H B SR E L A S A Al
ERREIRBARABE  EZF
AR 2807 2 B AR RIBR S  BR
FERER g5 tH 2 AT RE MEARK - TR
BIRXRRLAERRRENHEEELES
AESEFEIBEET  TEH
BRIAREE-

W

W TR e Wk R EZ 2 FER
E-ERENMmAIEERANEE - N
s AR (ARiE R ) BE F] SRt B 1 -
RHZ AT 7 AR R AR

() RBEHASKA
REMSWATIRETHER S
RIRR 5 BEREER - AFFE
HARBER SO BTN A B
O BB RS RREE ] SEnt B FE
RAZ LM WAIR - REH
BEFFEETETERRSZE
Wk KRB 2 R FHETIRES
BZAFESEEEIRERE
R 5D - WO REHELEA
R ARAKERITEERHR
EAEERLEREGETTERK

S o

(i) FIEKA
M EM AR BFRH R ARE L
TR

(iii) FRERGHERUA
FRENEEERARAREMHE
RARR A% s R AR o
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other
fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or placing of
assets on behalf of its customers. These assets arising
thereon are excluded from the consolidated financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:
(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
parents.

2 ERSHBE#®)

(o)

(p)

(a)

SEEBRE
AERZINERFEXHH 2 ERE
B-INERE  EREERREA
BRERPAERBZERKE - EX
BENERTER o

AOMNEIZE S KA EZ FEEEE
RABEARHAZERKRE -

R
AEBE—REEEFEA  RABHK
EPRARREEECEMZTES D
TE -HRREEEZZFEELIF
AEEEE BUTESERESWE
HRA e

BEAL
() fHEATAL  BIRZALEEZA
TOAREREEARE

(1) EHIRERZESARER
Q) BAEEEEATE N

B) RAKEFHAEEFAT
ZEEEEAR -
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSFHBEm®

(Continued)
(q) Related parties (Continued) () BEAEAL(#E)
(i)  An entity is related to the Group is any of the (i) HAFE TIERGRYE - AIZER
following conditions applies: RS EEHE
(1) The entity and the Group are members of the (1) ZEREAEEBEEBER-—
same group (which means that each parent, B 2 X ,% G IE=N SN cZ>
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to IR =GN AGEY = §
the others). NElZHMEE#HEZE) - o
=
(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of 2 —HEBES BB :?.I
the other entity (or an associate or joint LRRRAEE(HAZ g-
venture of a member of a group of which the S—ERMBESEEETK =
other entity is a member). BRAIZBERNRIHE & )
A R A
%) %*
(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same 3) MEEBHAR—F=H rBD
third party. BEbE o g'-
(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (4) —HEBRF-"FEBZ %
and the other entity is an associate of the third EEPE ME—TBE2A iﬁ
party. ZE-HERBZBERR) - ;UH
=
(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan (5) EEREAXREBEFERNEER Bt
for the benefit of employees of either the EAEZERLEEBRNT
Group or an entity related to the Group. RN 2 BERR R AT o
(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (6) EBRZOIEATHAIATIZE
a person identified in (). il s RIE S
(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant 7))  (OMIAFTHEALEHEE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEAFENSRBZER
key management personnel of the entity (or (HZERBZERR))ZE
of a parent of the entity). ZEBENXE -
Close members of the family of a person are those ERMALTZAHREREAZERER
family members who may be expected to influence, SRTEBA ZEZE A THEZ
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings ANTRHEZREKE °

with the entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are securities broking,
margin financing and commodities and futures broking.

Turnover represents the brokerage commission from securities,
commodities and futures broking and interest income from

margin and initial public offering (“IPO”) financings as follows:

2 ERSHBE#®)

(r) ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%
REDMIIFAMBRRAERZE
2 %Blﬁﬁégﬁ TIRBERDEERT
ANEE R R E D 2 R E R
EmEfRHETAEERSTREE
ABZBBEREE -

RHBHREMS - BARNEZLE D
TEGE2® RIELELIMEAHR
P ERBARTEER RRBHE
SEBRFULE  BERPRAEIEN 5
HEmSIREREMRBZ A KE
ERFEME T EBAL - 8853 IEB
BAZKE D HLRFE L KE D
B AT AE

R
AEBFTEEBKABHLL TEBEUR
R EERLD -

EEIEREES  BRRBELLE 2848
e FERERBEXARES ([HXAH
BEDBEMSHEWALRT :

Brokerage commission K me 216,191,555 183,935,190
Interest income from margin financing FRERBER WA 55,883,172 43,967,010
Interest income from IPO financing BHRXAFREBEERENSKA 1,206,001 804,959

273,280,728 228,707,159

The Group's customer base is diversified and no customer had
transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

AEEBRFERERE  HEEE —2FiET
IR EBEAEBEWEE 10% ©

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13



4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Hitzs

Interest income from MBWAKRE =
— Authorised institutions — RS 18,812,335 7,660,724 @*
— Others — HAth 9,394,410 6,477,894 8
—t
>
28,206,745 14,138,618 r_?_l
Handling and settlement fees FEENGEHEER 28,556,742 22,502,663 2
Sundry income TR A 960,363 330,317 =
Q.
wn
57,723,850 36,971,598 o
g
5 OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS) 5 Hftuss (B18) FH o
@
plan]
o
S
i
>3qd
i
=
Net foreign exchange gain HNE W EF FE 1,284,644 960,175 i
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEERE (553,986) (1,053,050)
Error trades arising from securities, BE EmAkHERSZ
commodities and futures dealings PR 5 (133,942) (666,926)
Others HAh (251,714) -
345,002 (759,801)
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

6 KRFEANEF

BB A& N 2 F0RR T 5 & IA

(a) Finance costs (a) BIBHRA
Interest expense on ARSI ERAZ
—  Bank loans for IPO financing —BXRRABERMEZ
RITEI 741,317 357,021
—  Other bank loans and overdrafts — BT ERNRES 12,795,823 7,818,316
—  Loans from related companies — REBEEARER 3,270,149 4,365,758
16,807,289 12,541,095
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERBLREWEN 72,952,155 62,552,331
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 9,453,056 8,309,853
Contributions to Mandatory BIES AR
Provident Fund 2,672,655 2,206,219
Equity-settled share-based payments BEEEURD A
Bt 518 - 1,651,142
85,077,866 74,719,545
(c) Other operating expenses () HbEEMX
Advertising and promotion expenses EENREEBY 7,892,008 6,954,804
Auditors’ remuneration AN & 1,319,166 1,546,335
Commission expense to BIMNS AR
overseas brokers 6,565,433 4,523,084
Handling and settlement expenses FEENEEEHR 22,242,487 18,409,221
Information and communication BB
expenses 21,037,196 20,507,433
Legal and professional fees FERBEEBR 3,006,766 2,961,321
Operating lease payments e ViEFOI NN
— property rentals — WERAS 32,945,974 25,988,199
Rates and building management fees EZMREFERE 3,627,683 3,056,999
Miscellaneous expenses MIEM Y 10,819,360 9,772,211
109,456,073 93,719,607
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 GAREREEZFER
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HmEZEWERZHIER
comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIHi#i18 — FEREH

Provision for the year FNEAE 15,242,758 11,922,321
Under-provision in respect of prior years B FERE T B 163,737 1,114,851

15,406,495 13,037,172
Deferred tax ELERE

Origination and reversal of temporary i 2= 58 2 SRR M

differences (note 23(b)) (HtaE23(b)) (481,239) (322,508)
14,925,256 12,714,664

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year HE-Z—=F=A=+—RHLFE

ended 31 March 2013 is calculated at 16.5% (2012: ZEBNEHRBERFAMBT BRI

16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. i A16.5% (ZF — 4 : 16.5%) 5
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEETEWRRZFABH @
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BRERBRFTE 2B ERZHES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: m A AR

=

(@]

—+

0]

wn

—+

(@]

—

=

- Profit before taxation R 55 BT Y Al 107,151,414 73,350,530

>

S

8- Notional tax on profit before taxation, 2165% (ZFE——F :

N calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5T 8 Z FRTEAT

+ A2 N/

Q A BRI 17,679,983 12,102,838
r3D Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A 2 B 2 161,807 466,786
g Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERFU S 7 TR 15 2 (3,161,319) (1,418,019)
7 Tax effect of unused tax losses AERRDHARIEEEZ

e not recognised i & 153,488 303,814
Sy Under-provision in respect of prior years B FE RGN B 163,737 1,114,851

sy Others Hh (72,440) 144,394
il

=t Actual tax expense ERFHIERS 14,925,256 12,714,664

il
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8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EEM<E

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RIBFBRMEMNE 161 IEEBE2EEHE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: R
2013
—E-=F
Equity-

Salaries, settled =
allowances Contributions  share-based <
and benefits to Mandatory payments -
Directors’ inkind Discretionary Provident BRLE o
fees  Hd- 2R bonuses Fund HURGBHER =
EEHe  REWEF BERA  BReHXN ZHA @
$ $ %-'
T T %
Yip Mow Lum ERA - 3,260,000 - 14,500 - 3,274,500 Q;J
Chan Kai Fung RN - 1,452,000 206,302 14,500 - 1,672,802 o
Kwok Sze Chi BBR - 1,332,000 193,158 14,500 - 1,539,658 o
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BRoKaH - 665,600 99,668 14,500 - 779,768 rBD
Yu Yun Kong RE 155,659 - - - - 155,659 =
Szeto Wai Sun AlfERERT 133,666 - - - - 133,666 w

Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph i 111,666 - - - - 111,666

Total @t 400,991 6,709,600 499,128 58,000 - 7,667,719

PR R MRS

Equity-settled
Salaries, share-based
allowances payments
and benefits Contributions to
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary Mandatory
EEA S

fees BE bonuses  Provident Fund
EEWS BN WERA  BRSEN

$
T

Yip Mow Lum EEH = 1,540,000 - 12,000 = 1,552,000
Chan Kai Fung [ = 1,440,000 201,951 12,000 166,740 1,820,691
Kwok Sze Chi FEA = 1,320,000 185,122 12,000 166,740 1,683,862
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson B = 660,000 108,893 12,000 33,348 814,241
Yu Yun Kong S8 150,507 - - = 55,524 206,031
Szeto Wai Sun AlfEAEH 129,000 - = = 55,524 184,524
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph i 107,505 - - - 55,524 163,029
Total szt 387,012 4,960,000 495,966 48,000 533,400 6,424,378
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8 DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (Continued)

No director received any emoluments from the Group as an
inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation for loss
of office and, no director waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments.

Note: These represented the estimated value of share options granted
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The
value of these share options was measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions
as set out in note 2(k)iii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and
note 25.

9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2012:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three

(2012: two) individuals are as follows:

BEEMHE (2

BEEEaAKERIEAME - (ERINEA
HEERARE c R KBRAHE  THRESR
BEXFERARTAMNE -

Hat R EFRERBEARABREFSXTE
EEREZAEEE 2TBREZEE
TH AR5 BT EE 2(k)Gii) P 8 AN 5= [ 7 B BA BR 0
REMZFARF 2 GFTHREAH o

ZEEYEN(BRERD 2 EREEZER
REEB) ZHEBRES SRS [BIETE)
— B M FE 25 EE o

REHFMAL
hEBREHFMWATHBEERE (T ——F
—R)BEE BEZHERKMESRE - &
T=ZH(ZE—Z=ZF : MB) AL Z2ME 85
o

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZBEREWERN 5,670,225 3,077,500
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 309,666 383,381
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund  5&#& % Lz 31,000 12,000
Equity-settled share-based payments w4 B AR R AT 2 518 - 206,703

6,010,891 3,679,584

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13



10

11

INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The emoluments of the three (2012: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Nil to $1,000,000

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000

Z £ 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 72 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 7t £ 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 L £ 3,000,000 7T

9

BREHHMAL @)

Z=HR(CE——F BMB)REHMALZ
MENFATEE :

Numbers of individuals

AE

2013
—E—=F

2012
—E——F

|
—

I N
[

-
—

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of $53,797 (2012: a loss of
$78,781) which has been dealt with in the financial statements

of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2013 of $92,226,158 (2012: $60,635,866),
and the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year ended 31 March 2013 of 906,394,671 (2012:
679,946,372).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2013 of $92,226,158 (2012:
$60,635,866) and the weighted average number of shares in
issue and the effect of deemed issue of shares under the
Company’s share option scheme (note 25) during the year
ended 31 March 2013 of 906,688,474 (2012: 681,823,449).

10

1"

R BEEABERZEA T EABE
ERINBARKBEH R INARZ e K ERB
B -

2N )R AR SR PB4 R R

AAREEREEIGLREEHNEE 25K
53,797 T2 BB (= ——F : E51878,781
7T) * WEIBE R AN RIS MK ETE -

BRAEF

ERERBMNDNEEE-_T—=F=A
=+ — B I FEARRD A IR G %A
92,226,158 7T (=& — —4F : 60,635,866 7T )
rEE—ZT—=F=ZA=+—HLFEE%H
1TRAD DIRE 988 906,394,671 R (=T ——
£ 679,946,372 1% )5t E -

ERBERFDRAE-F—=F=F
=+ B IR Y AR AR R R
92,226,158 7T ( —ZZF——4 : 60,635,866 JT)
UREZ2—ZE—=F=A=+—HItFEE
BRI T B RER B A A R
BB ETRO(WES 2 HE>
906,688,474 % ( — & — — 4 : 681,823,449
RS -
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the

way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s

most senior executive management for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment, the Group has

presented the following two reportable segments. No operating

segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

(a)

Securities broking — provision of broking services in
securities traded in Hong Kong and selected overseas
markets, and margin financing services to those broking
clients.

Commodities and futures broking — provision of broking
services in commodities and futures contracts traded in
Hong Kong and selected overseas markets.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors
and accruals attributable to the activities of the individual
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is earnings
before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT"). To arrive at EBIT,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
corporate administration costs.

12 DE®|E

AEERLEERNBD 2 D BE

BHE o

AEBRERERD B M RBAF AR AEE
RRTREEABARLZHBEN —BHTAZ
FULAT AR s 0 8 - BLEA G E D B
VALK T 51 AT 5 53 &6

(a)

BHEE — REREBRET BN
BLEBZBFRLERBROLLEEP
TFET/\%_YFJ:I Fﬂﬂéﬂ&% °©

Ak HERLE — RERBERETE
BITHEEREZEMEREANZR
AR

THEEE - BERER
RAEDHERRERED MRS EE
R ARERSTHREEAERAT
HEERRUBENEIEERSE &
EXRARE:

DHEEREMBANEERRBE
EIEEERAEERAEMAREE
BRoN - DERREEEER S BEEE
2R P ENER R R -

R E D EE AN RA A ERERE
B RS RN R AR A A 2 B A (TEBIT]) »
RS HEBITE - AEB AL EI5
ERBERDEZHE (A RITEAK
REHE—FRE -
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment information

12 PEH/E &)

(b) ZEHEHR

Securities

broking

2013

—E—=
Commodities
and futures
broking
Bmk

Revenue from external KEINARPE 2 :

customers:

— Brokerage commission  — &40 A4 130,965,150 85,226,405 216,191,555
— Interest income from — FREEF SWA

margin financing 55,875,265 7,907 55,883,172
— Interest income from — HRAAEER

IPO financing A BN 1,206,001 - 1,206,001
Consolidated turnover GABER 188,046,416 85,234,312 273,280,728
Handling and settlement fees FEBREEEFH 28,517,342 39,400 28,556,742
Reportable segment revenue 0] #4575 2hUL S 216,563,758 85,273,712 301,837,470
Reportable segment profit A] 35 5 2654 A (EBIT)

(EBIT) 100,810,090 24,047,082 124,857,172
Depreciation for the year FRITE (12,762,465) (16,673) (12,779,138)
Other interest income H A S 24,370,088 3,791,614 28,161,702
Finance costs B 78 R 2N (16,814,183) (5,983) (16,820,166)
Additions to non-current FAREZIERE

segment assets DEEE

during the year 12,194,148 144,550 12,338,698
Reportable segment assets ~ A[RE D EE 2,833,976,604 331,879,514 3,165,856,118
Reportable segment liabilities B]#h5n 2 & EF (2,219,260,483) (225,455,866) (2,444,716,349)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 PE®/E &)

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(b) 2EER(E)

Securities

broking
BAHEHK

Commodities
and futures
broking
[EEED
HERL

Revenue from external KEINARPE 2 :
customers:
— Brokerage commission = — &4 ML 119,464,277 64,470,913 183,935,190
— Interest income from — FREEF SWA
margin financing 43,967,010 - 43,967,010
— Interest income from — EHRAHAEER
- IPO financing BERBHA 804,959 = 804,959
3
HH Consolidated turnover IR 164,236,246 64,470,913 228,707,159
st Handling and settlement fees FEE Kk 45E & A 22,482,493 20,170 22,502,663
F Reportable segment revenue A #4572 UL S 186,718,739 64,491,083 251,209,822
Reportable segment profit A] 35 5 2654 A1 (EBIT)
(EBIT) 39,627,130 49,182,647 88,809,777

Depreciation for the year FAFE (10,373,721) (12,089) (10,385,810)
Other interest income H A S 13,100,832 1,036,782 14,137,614
Finance costs BA R AR (12,541,095) - (12,541,095)
Additions to non-current FAREZIERE

segment assets HEEE

during the year 13,987,141 - 13,987,141
Reportable segment assets ~ A[R&E D HEE 1,376,915,135 210,302,736 1,587,217,871
Reportable segment liabilities FJR4& D EE (990,107,029)  (104,131,143) (1,094,238,172)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(o)

12

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit,
assets and liabilities

N
2 H

(c)

B ¥R

% g)

AHED RN  EERAEZY

Profit gl

Reportable segment profit (EBIT) Al #2555 805% A1 (EBIT) 124,857,172 88,809,777
Finance costs BT RK 7R (16,820,166) (12,541,095)
Unallocated corporate expenses KO ARIEX (885,592) (2,918,152)
Consolidated profit before taxation 1R BT RN 107,151,414 73,350,530
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets Al E D HEE 3,165,856,118  1,587,217,871
Elimination of inter-segment receivable %454 5 & e U 0 18 (9,714,821) (6,137,151)
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 315,065 -
Unallocated corporate assets RAOBARIEE 30,143,135 9,098,307
Consolidated total assets IREBEMRE 3,186,599,497 1,590,179,027
Liabilities =R

Reportable segment liabilities AmESHEE (2,444,716,349) (1,094,238,172)
Elimination of inter-segment payable 5 o 20 A 7R 98,798,392 1,881,968
Current taxation BNHEARH IR (3.132,700) (3,763,141)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAEE (26,377) (192,551)
Unallocated corporate liabilities KO ARIEE (80,046,761) (68,666)
Consolidated total liabilities e BERE (2,429,123,795) (1,096,380,562)
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13 FIXED ASSETS 13 EE&EE
Leasehold Motor Office Furniture Computers
improvements vehicles equipment  and fixtures  and software
% WAZRE HKAREE BEREH
$ $
=
O i
I~ Cost: B
wn
o
— At 1 April 2011 R=_E——FNA—H 15,792,710 578,700 10,432,756 6,882,355 9,318,687 43,005,208
(-DD_ Additions NE 9,305,851 = 1,533,334 680,332 2,691,160 14,210,677
) Disposals HE (681,641) (400,000) = (263,571) (223,535) (1,568,747)
>
Q
>
8- At 31 March 2012 RZE-——#=A=1+—H 24,416,920 178,700 11,966,090 7,299,116 11,786,312 55,647,138
A
ﬂ At 1 April 2012 R-E-—FNA—H 24,416,920 178,700 11,966,090 7,299,116 11,786,312 55,647,138
t'BD Additions NE 4,377,411 = 1,864,003 2,200,187 4,480,597 12,922,198
g Disposals HE (1,475,603) = (548,206) (788,396) - (2,812,205)
a
som At 31 March 2013 W-E—=%=A=+—H 27,318,728 178,700 13,281,887 8,710,907 16,266,909 65,757,131
Al 0 T TR e e T et
5
2l Accumulated depreciation:  RIEHE :
E At 1 April 2011 RZZ——%MA-A 8,765,808 58,232 3,618,551 3,100,543 3,564,515 19,107,649
il
g Charge for the year FREX 5,336,832 82,417 1,906,244 1,072,190 2,190,496 10,588,179
Written back on disposals R EBER (133,003) (66,670) - (30,857) (15,167) (245,697)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——%=fA=+-H 13,969,637 73,979 5,524,795 4,141,876 5,739,844 29,450,131
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FNA—H 13,969,637 73,979 5,524,795 4,141,876 5,739,844 29,450,131
Charge for the year FRAX 6,863,077 35,748 2,154,079 1,245,345 2,558,689 12,856,938
Written back on disposals R ERER (1,371,969) - (306,478) (579,772) = (2,258,219)
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=A=+—H 19,460,745 109,727 7,372,3% 4,807,449 8,298,533 40,048,850
Net book value: SRERME
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%4=A=+—-H 7,857,983 68,973 5,909,491 3,903,458 7,968,376 25,708,281
At 31 March 2012 RZE—-=—%=A=+—-H 10,447,283 104,721 6,441,295 3,157,240 6,046,468 26,197,007
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14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 14 H3EREBEE

Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEFTZETHRS
clearing houses 47,425,157 8,490,032
15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 15 EUWERX

=
@)
=
D
n
=
(@)
—
>
D
)
>
Q
>
o)
8
wn
—
Q
—+
()
3
(%)
>
—
n

Accounts receivable from FEBR TR B
— Cash clients —BHEEP 178,006,165 110,688,229
— Margin clients —HFREF 2,128,166,918 893,571,157 .
— Clearing houses — EEER 352,886,741 127,318,844 g
— Brokers and dealers — RBERRGE 47,783,066 15,345,484 iﬁ
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T RIREME (938,449) (964,384) EUH
=
2,705,904,441 1,145,959,330 ]lzlﬂll:
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRE AT
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash REpEHI R 7 FEIRIE © R P ER S EE #%
clients as of the end of the reporting period is as follows: DI :

Current Bl EA 41,878,559 38,637,877
Less than 1 month past due BHR 1 8 A 104,579,633 59,540,934
1 to 3 months past due wmE1 =318 A 27,401,692 6,738,631
More than 3 months past due wHEIZ R 38 A 4,146,281 5,770,787
Amounts past due B H & 5B 136,127,606 72,050,352

178,006,165 110,688,229
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

15 EWERF &)
(a) BREEDHT (&)

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

3 |

>Jd
st
=

g
=

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. These receivables are fully secured by their
portfolio of securities, at 31 March 2013, the total market
value of their portfolios of securities was $973,014,735
(2012: $790,914,839). Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

Margin loans due from margin clients are current and
repayable on demand. Margin clients are required to
pledge securities collateral to the Group in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading. The amount of credit
facilities granted to them is determined by the discounted
value of securities accepted by the Group. At 31 March
2013, the total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was
approximately $5,809,289,258 (2012: $2,941,959,839).

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and
dealers are current. These represent (1) pending trades
arising from the business of dealing in securities, which
are normally due within a few days after the trade date
and (2) margin deposits arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
note 27(a).

FBRBEEFPERY RZ % H
WERRLE R - 25 REWHIE
BHEASEHEER RZ2F—=
=RA=+—H: HBEGESFzEME
#973,014,7357t( = & — = %
790,914,8397T) - IRBEBALR - &
BEREBARZSARIED AR
B RAREEERIESKEHK
ERAGSRER AT 2HURE -

BURFFREFZIFRER AN KA
RERKEE - FEEFPAMAEEE
WEFERR  URBEARZERE
ERE BRTREZEEMRESER
REBBEN s BELFEREBEET - 1
—ET-ZFZAF=+—8" BHFREE
FPERERCHEREZHRERERRZ
M EBEY) 55,809,289,258 L (=&
— % :2,941,959,839 ) °

EWEER  BRERXFEZERR
B BREFRKA(WEEESEH
IEHHEEER S —RRRHAR
FZARES  RQEEHEROES
ZHRRES -

AEBEERE ZE—TFHBENK
5F27(a) °
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of margin clients and brokers and
dealers receivable

Impairment losses in respect of margin clients and brokers
and dealers receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against margin clients and brokers and dealers
receivables directly (see note 2(f)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during

the year is as follows:

15 FEWERF &)
(b) EUFREFURKLRRBEHR

TR E

FEM IR 5 P IA R 42 ) X 5 R 5 0R
ZRERBEARERRTR - EAEE
HE(E AT SRIR A AT BEE AR B RRSD -
EUBERT - BEREE X EERT
R P IA K 42 N 32 5 72 e MR TR
8 (MR 2(03)

REREZFAZBNT :

At 1 April R A—H 964,384 -
Impairment loss recognised B R E R e - 964,384
Amounts recovered BBl & 58 (25,935) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 938,449 964,384

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s margin clients and
brokers and dealers receivables of $938,449 (2012:
$964,384) was determined to be impaired. The impaired
receivables related to margin clients and brokers and
dealers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered.

R-E—=FZA=+—H A5H
LHBREPURKLERR 5% 2 EK
FRIE 938,449 0( = F — = : 964,384
L) EERBERE - BRERKGIE
HPBEERSE FEE S URELRL
kXPEEH BEEBEBETKE
B FEUGRIA o
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16 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16 HEWFIE  RERBENFIE
PREPAYMENTS

=

9

3 Rental and utility deposits HERKEEES 12,979,735 8,370,302
o Prepayments TEfFRIE 3,387,483 2,451,894
% Other receivables H b fE W e 9,401,750 1,657,473
)

S

% 25,768,968 12,479,669
(o)

QO

wn Included in the above balances are amounts of $13,378,109 R_E—=FK-_FT——F=A=+—8"
+ —
=) and $9,478,094 as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 respectively ALt s sR 2 IR RN 413,378,109 TT &2
® = )

= which are expected to be recovered in more than one year. 9,478,094 IR HAM N —F& UKD -

D

>

@ 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 RERRSEEY

X (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () HEeRBELEEYEIE:

L

The Group The Company
A AT
2013 2013

>Jd
st
=

g
55

—B-=f —g-=%

Deposits with banks RITER 156,265,525 249,483,240 - 17,952
Cash at bank and inhand #8717 % F5EIR & 225,212,060 147,569,749 7,019,340 3,041,007
381,477,585 397,052,989 7,019,340 3,058,959

The Group maintains segregated accounts with authorised REBRRAKBREBLERERS - RN
institutions to hold client money in the normal course of BEEBBAEREPHEEFES -
business.
At 31 March 2013, client money maintained in segregated RZZE—=F=A=+—H ' FER
accounts not otherwise dealt with in the financial BURPEWERVBREEMI S
statements amounted to $2,475,985,754 (2012: BEZRFESAH52,475,985,754
$1,744,633,782). TL(ZF—% :1,744,633,7827T)
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 17 BEeRBEEEY &)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIADBRIEELE X (FTA) Fr
(used in)/generated from operations: BIHE Y :

=
(@]
3
I
wn
Profit before taxation R A5 A v ) 107,151,414 73,350,530 o
3
Adjustments for: AT S BEEL AR - -
Depreciation e 12,856,938 10,588,179 =5
Finance costs B TSR AR 16,807,289 12,541,095 S
Interest income (excluding interest FMBWA (T EEFERE e
wn
income from margin and MERAFEERE &
IPO financings) FEWKA) (28,206,745) (14,138,618) g
Loss on disposals of fixed assets & EE B E 2 EiE 553,986 1,053,050 )
' >
Equity-settled share-based payments REREE AR AT 73
Z I - 1,651,142
Pluni}
=
~ =
Changes in working capital: EBEELE e
(Increase)/decrease in Hu3ERBEE (38 M),/~ EUH
other non-current assets Ve (38,935,125) 13,378,891 =
(Increase)/decrease in FEUSBR ZR (28 h0), TRk > B
accounts receivable (1,559,945,111) 198,677,265
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, — H{thEWFIE - I2& &
deposits and prepayments TaftsRIE (g ), R (13,289,299) 405,819
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable  FE{SBRFIZE A0, Ori4) 144,653,231 (6,228,904)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses  FEETFA S [z H fih fE 5 R 1E
and other payables =0 Opid) 3,886,617 (2,063,503)

Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4 & 27% (FrA),/Fii3E & (1,354,466,805) 289,214,946

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH
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18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 RHIBATZ2RE

The Company
KT
2013

—8-=

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - AANE 780 780
Capital contribution FE 3,803,257 4,088,970
3,804,037 4,089,750

T E RARB IR 2(k)ii) PR & 5T BRI T A
NEMEARER 2 BN TE -

Capital contribution represents the fair value of share options
granted to the employees of a subsidiary of the Company in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(k)(iii).

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

(a) At 31 March 2013, the Company had direct or indirect (@) RZZE—=F=A=+—8"'&2Q7
e interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are RATHEB A B A & ok s
private companies, particulars of which are set out below: ZEMB AR RIART - FI1BEW

T

A 2E MLk 1

Attributable
equity interest
e §+

Direct Indirect

B %

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
ERITRARRAE

Place and date of

il

Principal activities

FRER

incorporation

LA L i B R B 5

Name of company

NAER

Bright Smart Investment British Virgin US$100 at US$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands (BVI)/ per share REER
B RERRBR AT 22 October 2009 100%7T -
RERUHES/ BREBIET
—TTNE
TAZ+=A
Bright Smart Asset Hong Kong/ HK$5,000,000 at - 100%  Inactive
Management Limited 18 August 2011 HK$1 per share Tmay
BAEEERERLA B/ —F——F 5,000,000/ *
AViRWAN= BREB1AT
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18

Name of company

REER

Bright Smart Futures &
Commaodities Co., Ltd
Bl HEREmBRAA

Bright Smart Forex Limited
(formerly known as
Bright Smart FX &
Bullion Limited)

B RIRINERR AR
(AR SNEE S
BRAA)

Bright Smart Global Bullion
Limited
BIRREEERAA

Bright Smart Investment
Consultancy (China)
Company Limited

B REFAER (PE)
BRAR

Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(Continued)

Place and date of
incorporation

AR A

Hong Kong/

14 November 1995
B/ —NNEF
+—A+mA

Hong Kong/

23 April 2012
BB/ —B——F
MA=+=H

Hong Kong/

10 October 2012
Et/-F-=F
+A+A

Hong Kong/
9 November 2010
A/ —T-TF
+—ANA

Hong Kong/
10 August 1998

BABHER (BB)BRAR &R/ —ANNF

Everlasting Source Limited
BYBRRA

NA+H

Hong Kong/
8 December 2010
BE/ 254
TZANE

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
ERTRBERE

HK$44,000,000 at
HK$1 per share
44,000,000 & T °
BREE1ET

HK$30,000,000 at
HK$1 per share

30,000,000 T *
SREE1ET

HK$10,000 at HK$1

per share
10,000 % 7T *

FREE1ET

HK$1 at HK$1

per share
1B
SBREE1ET

HK$481,000,000 at
HK$1 per share
481,000,000 7T
BREE1ET

HK$1 at HK$1

per share
187
BREE1ET

(@) &)
Attributable
equity interest
[ e £
Direct Indirect
B [k
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

BABSZEMEBERLT o

18 RMIBATZIRE (#)

Principal activities

TEEHR

Commodities and
futures broking
AmNkAEEE

Inactive
TEER

Inactive
Tmex

Investment holding

RERKR

Securities broking and
margin financing

BHELRAFRAE

Administrative Services

TTHRH

—E -/ —=FFR
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18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 RHBATZRE (&)

BA B A (R ARAT
(Note) (H1it)

People’s Republic

of China/

10 January 2011
hEARLME,
—E——%—RfTH

(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
AEER EMRUHHRASE EBRTRARRE e § TEXK
Direct Indirect
§ B i
® Glow Dragon Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 at HK$1 Administrative Services
o EaERAR 21 January 2010 per share
= BB/ _E2-%F VAT
o —A=+-A SREE AT
S
Q
8. Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 at HK$1 Administrative Services
28 RERERAR 13 January 2010 per share
o E8/-2-2F 18T
@ —RA+=H BREE1ET
2
a- Ideal Magic Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 at HK$1 Administrative services
REBR AT 13 January 2010 per share
- Bt/ -5-%4 187
bk —At=H BREE BT
b=
= Merit Act Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 at HK$1 Administrative services
Sl EEBRAT 3 November 2009 per share
BE/“TTNF 18T
+—A=H BREE1ET
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 at HK$1 Administrative services
ERERAR 21 January 2010 per share
BE/—T-TF 187
—A=+—H BREE1ET

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 % 7T

et - bR R TR E AR KRB A —
RSB E R -

Note: It is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
the People’s Republic of China.
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18 RMIBATZIRE (#)

(b) W (fF)KMEBATKE
BR-_Z—=F#=ZA=1+—HB A%
80,000,000 7T 2 F& W — & fI /B A A 3K
BAERR  BREREERZRES
RITRIZESR B AN2.25% F R B4 -
RZE—=FEK-_ZFT—_=AH4
=+—H8 - ERSU)MEBRRKIE
HhAEERIE 2B RAKRERERER -
FREESEENRE AR AFERS -

18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the amounts due from/
(to) subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand, except for the amount due from a
subsidiary of $80,000,000 as at 31 March 2013 was
unsecured, repayable on demand and bore interest at
HIBOR+ 2.25% per annum. The carrying amount
approximates to its fair value as at the reporting date.

19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 19 EFERF

The Group
AEE
2013

—EB—=F

=
O
=
D
%)
—
o
—
>0
D
)
>
QO
S
o)
O
wn
—
Q
—
o)
3
D
5
—~
wn

plan]

Accounts payable FETBR K %

— Cash clients —ReEP 136,237,319 66,866,180 i

— Margin clients —FREF 359,275,331 161,168,878 5\<H+

— Clearing houses — BEER 90,171,405 241,702,113 ?Tl-

— Brokers — &4 28,706,347 - HY
614,390,402 469,737,171

or on demand.

All of the accounts payable are aged and due within one month

ARNER Rk A—EARER—@EA

NE|HARAREERERE -

BABSZEMEEERLT ¢ —T—
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20 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 FEXBIx & HAbpE (kg

The Group

ZN
2013

—8-=

Commission rebate payable FE A & Ol #5 5,768,842 4,139,055
Accrued bonuses FEETHIEAL 2,670,938 3,018,516

Stamp duty, trading levy and JERTEDIER - REMBRZSE
trading fee payables 4,221,519 3,182,719
Other payables HAth FEAS FR0E 8,913,017 7,347,409
21,574,316 17,687,699

The Company
AT

=
O
—+
@D
wn
—+
(@)
—
>
™
2
5
Y
S
0,
N
wn
—
Q
—
®
3
D
S
—
(%]

plans| 2013

& = —

o = =

+

>3d

it

=

1:|||l:

Other payables H SRR 27,022 17,325

All accrued expenses and other payables are expected to be TEERFT A FERT RS R E A FE S SRIER R —F
settled or recognised as income within one year. AEESFERABUA -
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21 BANK LOANS 21 8RTER

The Group The Company

A%
2013

—Eg—=

Bank loans RITER 1,690,000,000

KAF
2013
—2-=

425,000,000 80,000,000 =

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and classified
as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the bank
borrowings approximate their fair value.

The bank loans as at 31 March 2013 are interest-bearing at
1.74% (2012: 2.05%) per annum. Securities collateral deposited
by the Group’s margin clients was re-pledged to banks to secure
these loan facilities. The fair value of the collateral re-pledged to
banks as at 31 March 2013 amounted to $2,687,047,150
(2012: $916,921,500). Such banking facilities amounted to
$2,378,000,000 (2012: $2,073,000,000) and were utilised to
the extent of $1,610,000,000 (2012: $425,000,000).

The remaining bank loans amounted to $80,000,000 were not
secured.

FIAERITERAR —FREERIBARD
BfE - RITEEZRAEEE QA FERE

RZTB—=F=A=+—RAZBTERIRF
FIE1.74% (ZFE— =4 : 2.05%) 58 ° A&
EECHREFPFEESFAEALBERT
RIT LS BEBEERRE -RZT—=F
Z=RA=+—8 BERTROZERRAT
BEA % 452,687,047,150c( - T — — £
916,921,5007T ) ERITME S XL B
2,378,000,0007T( —Z— —4F : 2,073,000,000
7T) » B EF1,610,000,0007C (& — — 4 :
425,000,000 7T) °

#: 80,000,000 TLERITER BEIMFEE -

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$25,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

Notes to the Financial Statements

LUpE RS ey IR

22 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS — 22 EEERKERN — EHEHEFENK

Ha

AEBRBEE RGBS B RIE
BEEBERGINBNEERERMAETX
JE BB MR IRET BIRIE 2 B BRI HIMER
et ((REesta)) - BESAIRE
BEHFEARE - HBLEFEAEE - R
miEEAtE BERHEERSEARESN
B A 2 5% [R5t BIfE 413K HELAE A
B4 A 25,0007 & ERR - 71 8 H K EDE 5B
B o

REMBRRRZAEHR

(a) HEMBAREKZBNEIBRIALRE

=
O
—+
@D
wn
—+
(@)
—
>
™
2
5
Y
S
0,
N
wn
—
Q
—
®
3
D
S
—
(%]

plan]
=
5
T
554
it
=
B Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBISTRE
for the year 15,242,758 11,922,321
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EHFEH (12,110,058) (8,159,180)
3,132,700 3,763,141
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 FREMBRRARZFAEBH @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b)(i)Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: (b)() EL&IEEE&EF?E :
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities #&“’m\ﬁﬁj‘%ﬁk,ﬂﬁﬁﬁw{lzLLME(é
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial E)/ BEAKSS RERNSENT ¢
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Depreciation

allowance

in excess of

Prepaid Accrued the related

bonuses bonuses  depreciation
HBHARRTE
FFIEA PEETTEAL ZITERE

Deferred tax (assets)/  FUATREELZ

liabilities arising EERE
from: (BE)/8f&:
At 1 April 2011 RZFE——FNHA—H 131,312 (652,054) 1,035,801 515,059
(Credited)/charged to Rz GtA)/
profit or loss (note 7(a)) 1% (Hfa# 7(a)) (16,500) 153,999 (460,007) (322,508)
At 31 March 2012 RZT—ZF
=A=+—H~ 114,812 (498,055) 575,794 192,551
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——4mA—H 114,812 (498,055) 575,794 192,551
Charged/(credited) to RN/
profit or loss (note 7(a)) (5t A\)(A1:# 7(a)) 5,501 57,350 (544,090) (481,239)
At 31 March 2013 RZT—=%F
=A=+-H 120,313 (440,705) 31,704 (288,688)
(b)(ii) Reconciliation to the statement of financial (b)(ii) 81 7k 5 3= =2 ¥ BR

position

Net deferred tax asset recognised in ERMBRARFERZ

the statement of financial position FEETRIB A EFE (315,065) =
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in EE’\ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ/\RﬁﬁPﬁEﬁZ

the statement of financial position EIEF A A & FE 26,377 192,551

(288,688) 192,551

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH

SlusuielllS |eldueul{ ayl O] S°10N

plan]
&SE
o
k-
>3d
i
-
p=lllg
|_H/
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BX - RERRE
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) REZHERIPD Z2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBE LA FEZR S /A E0 9 5 ) B 2
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated REBRZEHRIANGEEZEGE -
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes A ) B 2 48 K BB 0 P AN G TE B
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s VIR ERE 2 BB S E5 | T

individual components of equity between the beginning

and the end of the year are set out below:

=
,C_)..
a
ol The Company Ay |
=
2' (Accumulated
a losses)/
= Share Share  Share option retained
v capital premium reserve profits
A (2HER)/
@ B RivEE — BRERSK
: f f
G{- JC JG
% At 1 April 2011 RZE——FWA—AH 203,904,600 192,255,508 2,749,525 (482,958) 398,426,675
bk Dividend paid during the year AR RS - (12234.276) - - (12,234276)
E‘UH Shares issued under BRI 2 T E Rk
= share option scheme 942,000 1,886,150 (661,550) - 2,166,600
ks Profit and total comprehensive  EREF 2 2 H Ui %
income for the year - - - 12,161,219 12,161,219
Equity-settled share-based ~ BmEERHAER
transactions X5 - - 1,339,445 - 1,339,445
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—5=F=t+-H 204,846,600 181,907,382 3,427,420 11,678,261 401,859,663
At 1 April 2012 W_E——FmA—H 204,846,600 181,907,382 3,427,420 11,678,261 401,859,663
Dividend paid during the year  FRE RS - (18,436,194) - - (18436,194)
Shares issued under REfRiE T 2 N E R R
share option scheme 2,070,912 4,008,491 (1,454,366) = 4,625,037
Shares issued under right issue A8 T B #17MR 102,423,300 85,352,750 = - 187,776,050
Share issuance costs WD BTN - (2,513,814) - - (2,513,814)
Profit and total comprehensive £ P IR 2 Il 2 5
income for the year - - - 18,746,203 18,746,203
Equity settled share based ~ BHEEURHAZE XS
transactions - - (285,713) - (285,713)
At31 March 2013 RZE-=F=A=1-H 309,340,812 250,318,615 1,687,341 30424464 591,771,232
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BEXR - RERKRE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Dividends
(b)(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of

(b) KB
(b)(i) FF B2 KRB A FEES

the Group attributable to the year RE
Dividends declared in respect of the current year are NEEETIRZELNT :
as follows:

REEHREEZZRD

Final dividend proposed after the end

of the reporting period of

BB R @R 2.7l

2.7 cents per ordinary share (Z2——F : 8%
(2012: 1.8 cents per ordinary share) A% 1.810)
(2013: 1,031,136,040 shares; —E—=F:
2012: 682,822,000 shares) 1,031,136,040 % :
—E——fF:

12,290,796

682,822,000 i%) 27,840,673

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

BEPRREZ RS BFR
RRARREEBRRBFAE L
HAERYERFEHRRERSE

(==
=]

o
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(b)(ii) 5= B 55 IR RIEAG £ — BT B
BEZEMNRE(FRABMER

(b)(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Group attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year: 11) :

Final dividend in respect of previous
financial year, approved and paid
during the year, of 1.8 cents per
ordinary share (2012: 1.8 cents
per ordinary share)

(2013: 1,024,233,000 shares,
2012: 679,682,000 shares)

FURFEZRERE
SRR E B 1.810
(FRBHEN T )
(ZZ—=%F: &
A 1.810L)
(ZB—=%:
1,024,233,000 fi%
—E——4F:
679,682,000 %)

18,436,194 12,234,276

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX - #ERERE @)
(Continued)
(c) Share capital () BRAE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F

No. of Nominal No. of

shares value shares

ROHE H{E R #E

Authorised: EE
At 1 April and REA—B R
31 March =A=1+—H 2,000,000,000 600,000,000 2,000,000,000 600,000,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR

=
O
—+
@D
wn
—+
(@)
—
>
™
2
5
Y
S
0,
N
wn
—
Q
—
®
3
D
S
—
(%]

At 1 April RmA—H 682,822,000 204,846,600 679,682,000 203,904,600
Shares issued under HRRIB T E BT’
rights issue (note (i) (Hiz() 341,411,000 102,423,300 = =
R Shares issued under share  1RIEEERRETEB T
H option scheme (note (i) BEATMI (A7iE (i) 6,903,040 2,070,912 3,140,000 942,000
Ly
%’H At 31 March R=B=+—8H 1,031,136,040 309,340,812 682,822,000 204,846,600
=F
p=1ll'g
: The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TmREE AEREETREIR 2R
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled BEREERARARRE R TRRMD K
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All —ZFE -RARAKRTEEMS ' A
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s TR = HRIEMAL -

residual assets.

(i)  Issue of new shares under the rights issue (i) REEBRZBITHRG

On 6 August 2012, the Company completed a RZZE—Z—F\AXH ' X7
rights issue to raise $187,776,050 by issuance of ST —IRHER - BBEER0.55
341,411,000 rights shares at a price of $0.55 per JC 2 (B 1% 3 17 341,411,000 A%
share. After deducting the expenses in connection fi% I% {7 & & 187,776,0507T °
with the rights issue amounting to $2,513,814, the brE IR 2,513,814 T4 -
net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares is BITLEBRAERNEIFER
$185,262,236. 185,262,236 7T °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BEXR - RERKRE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued) () BA(#E)
(i) Shares issued under the share option scheme (i) FRABREZETEZRTRG
during the year are summarised as follows: BT -

Number of
share options Share Share

Share option

exercised  Consideration capital premium reserve

i id
L] ’ Bx Rta®E  BRERG
§

T

SlusuielllS |eldueul{ ayl O] S°10N

New shares issued due to exerdise  EZ=F—=F
of share options for the year ZACT-HLEEE
ended 31 March 2013 RITHEERER £

ARG 6,903,040 4,625,037 2,070,912 4,008,491 (1,454,366)

New shares issued due to exercise  H{Z=5——F o
of share options for the year SA=T-HIERFE %
ended 31 Mach 2012 R ERRENS s

LA 3,140,000 2,166,600 942,000 1,886,150 (661,550) St
=
B

(iii) 7R3 & R K o 2R JE A R 1 R AT 1
ZIERRERR

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period

2013 2012

—=—= T

Exercise Number of Number of
share options

R EHE

share options

BREHE

Exercise period price

T fTEfE

13 October 2011 to

—F——#tAT=AZ

12 October 2013 —T—=F+A+=H $0.69 - 16,268,000
13 October 2011 to —Z——%+A+=HBH%
12 October 2013 —T—=%+A+=H $0.67 8,522,172 -
8,522,172 16,268,000
BARLELREBERAT ¢« —T——/ —=FFR
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

24 EX - REERRE #®)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (d) FHEMHERE®N
(i)  Share premium (i) KRGEE

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

N
P

&
S5
funi
o
=

B

g
=

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Bright Smart Futures &
Commodities Co., Ltd, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited and Merit Act Limited
through Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited
from their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof is treated as an equity movement and
recorded in “Merger reserve”.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual number of unexercised share options
granted under the share option scheme recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in note 2(k)(iii).

Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are distributable to
the equity shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $280,743,079
(2012: $193,585,643).

RERASBEESRFDE  ARFZ
R g (B AR AT AR S IR T
Rz DIRHIE - HERBERE X
kRS B#E AR
AMDAIE R BEBBRETENE
2HMET

(i) EOHFE
RZZE—ZFFA=-+HhB &
NEBE BB REERBR AR
MRABRERERBRAR - 2
TEFER (BB)BRAFKE
BERARIZEARTEREZSE
NAZEHEBITRA - BEA
SEBW S 2 B AR ZRAE
BEEAQNBEFET2RAEEE
ARE) MEZZERIEERE
BRI WELERTE [ & O
m °

(iii) FEIRFEF R
P % 1A B2 4R AR Y A 2(K) i)
AR RERZ FERBZE
TR R IR IR BT 81 T
ZARTTEEREBRSE ZRF
I

(iv) 7kfEfE
RBARR B 2 ABERAM A
AR - WHERBEIFH D IRIEA
REAEER—RAEERGERE
REEEKZRIRT - AR
A AR D Ik o

R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—R8" 17
HD IR T AR RS R 2 e
48 % % /280,743,079t ( = F
— % :193,585,6437C) °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost. In addition, certain subsidiaries of the
Group licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
("SFC") are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“FRR") at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and make
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the
Group ensures each of them maintains a liquid capital
level adequate to support the level of activities with
sufficient buffer to accommodate for increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the level
of business activities. During the financial year, all the
licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR at all times.

24 EX - REERRE ®)

(e)

BEXREE
AEEEREAZEZABRRARER
SEBERE 2k BEARERR
IKFREmR SRR EBARIAAEK
AEBGHE  BBERBRRTREER
REMESTAEAGRNE BN
EESLHEEBERZES((RE
SDRABRAKEETHEBRR
ANEMRRETEZES IS (MERE
RRATHBRERRANDIET 2EE
MEBEESHTE °

AEEESREERRT REEENE
B EUEHERREEKTFZES
P IR [ 3R B AR 2 B AROR 7 R 2 BT B
RARE 2 RIS F & - 30 B R AR A IR
BrEBHENERBELRE - B
EHEBARME @ AEERERSNB
REPRFBESBEEEAE - BAXHE
B UREXBRBAEES
REMSIBHRBES 2FR LI
JRREFELS B 20 o 1O BF BRAF O (R AR B
& PRAREN BRI ETHRE
BRAUNETZREBESRE e

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH

SlusuielllS |eldueul{ ayl O] S°10N

plan]
&SE
o
k-
>3d
l
-
p=lllg
l_H/




Notes to the Financial Statements

LUpE RS ey IR

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 25 XS E RGO SER > ZHE

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted NARIHRAE —TBERESTE R-E—FFE
on 4 August 2010 by a resolution of the board of directors of NANBHRARREZS BB RBZREN -
the Company whereby the employee, consultants, contractors NEERE  BEE - ApENESAESRHE
and directors of the Group are entitled to the share option BRIt - M v ERES EE BRI R
scheme. The options granted have no vesting condition and are AR RMEERNITE - SMHERER TEEA
then exercisable within a period of two years. Each option gives FER R — AR AN BT @A o
g the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
§ Company.
o
= (a) The number and weighted average exercise (a) BREHSERMELHITEEL
r_||>_| prices of share options are as follows: T
D
2 2013
L —E-Z=f —T_F
§ Weighted Weighted
o Number of average Number of average
('BD share exercise share exercise
a.. options price options price
Y e
g BEER A EE  BRENE el
S5 3
- -
=
g Outstanding at the beginning 4]/ A&1T{E
of the year 16,268,000 0.69 18,348,000 1.12
Granted during the year FERRE - - 19,578,000 0.69
Exercised during the year FERTE (6,903,040) 0.67 (3,140,000) 0.69
Cancelled during the year FRNEH - - (16,268,000) 1.12
Lapsed during the year FRERM (1,356,120) 0.69  (2,250,000) 1.09
Adjustment for rights issue £ % 8% 513,332 0.67 - -
Outstanding at the end FRERITRE
of the year 8,522,172 0.67 16,268,000 0.69
Exercisable at the end FRA TR
of the year 8,522,172 0.67 16,268,000 0.69
The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had an R-_TE—=F=ZA=+—BHKTE
exercise price of $0.67 (2012: $0.69) and a weighted ZHERETEEARIIT(ZE— =
average remaining contractual life of 6 months (2012: 1.5 & :0.697T) - MMEFHARTETOE
years). BAEA(ZE——F :15F)-
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 25 RHF&£ELURAOAER 2B &)
(Continued)

(b) Modification of the share option — change of (b) BREMSE —THEERIHAE

exercise price and expiry date

On 13 October 2011, the Board approved a board
resolution to cancel all remaining 16,268,000 share
options granted on 25 February 2011 with an exercise
price of $1.12 and grant new options to the same
grantees in exchange therefore with an exercise price of
$0.69. This was effectively a modification to the share
option scheme reducing the exercise price for the share
options granted on 25 February 2011 from $1.12 to
$0.69. The expiry date for the share options was amended
to 12 October 2013. The reduction of exercise price and
the amendment of expiry date of the above share options
resulted in an incremental fair value of $1,356,263 at the
modification date. The incremental fair value was
recognised as an equity-settled share-based payment
expense during the previous financial year.

2]
R=ZE——F+A+=H EF<H
KEEZERER THEHAERZ=Z
——F_A-+HARHEZHTH
16,268,00017 FEfix 1 - H1TEER1.12
T ¢ T A AR E A BT 3 R AR A A
ERMM  ET{EER069T - A&
Bt AR EER A RUERT - KR
T A+ HEBREZER
BITEEMHR1.12TT THAE0.697T ° I8
RE2HBHBEITA=ZZE—=F1H
+ZH biERETFEETARE
HBEETERAFER ISR A JE N
1,356,263 7T ° A F1{H 2 MM E—8F
BEENERBERGEEURD AE
2 FIEAY -
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 25 #ERAELIRHAER > Z1E2)
(Continued)

(c) Adjustments to exercise price and number of () AHBRMEERETEEREEE

shares options due to the rights issue

Upon completion of the rights issue on 6 August 2012,
the exercise price and the number of shares to be issued
and allotted under the outstanding share options had
been adjusted pursuant to the terms of the share option
scheme and the supplementary guidance issued by the
Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005 regarding the
adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the

TR

R-ZF——F/\A/NB TR KR -
RIZFB R ARRT SRR LB R PR —
TRFNATARMGBERBIBE TR
A1 17.03013) (RIBIAER B 2 T8 18
5l B ARITERBAER T EHTRE
B ERETEERRE T TARE -
IR BN AR 2 7] B 3% N 31T AR

HEE-_E——FNAASBER B
R AT B IR NS T 1T 2 AR T
FERHE ZARMNT :

Listing Rules. The adjustments to the exercise price and
the number of the shares falling to be issued under the
outstanding share options are as follows with effect from
6 August 2012 upon the Company’s allotment and issue

of the rights shares pursuant to the rights issue:

Before completion of After completion of
the rights issue the rights issue
AR 55 KAl B TR &

Adjusted
Number of Adjusted number of
Exercise shares exercise shares

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

E/

Date of grant of price falling price falling
the share options Exercise period per share  to be issued per Share  to be issued

RBTRG KHARBR KHEBERT
RHEREADN 1T BRITEE 4] THEE R E A

&
S
funi
o
=

g
55

13 October 2011 13 October 2011 to 0.69 15,098,000 0.67 15,611,332
—T——F+A+=H 12 October 2013
—Z——F+A+=HE
—T—=%+HA+=H
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26 COMMITMENTS 26 EIE

(i) Capital commitments (i) BEREIE
The capital commitments as at 31 March 2013 not R-ZE—=F=A=1+—HHEKAEH
provided for in the financial statement were as follows: EUEIHRR Z EREAEMT ¢

Contracted for EHES) 8,421,848 1,572,525
(i) Operating lease commitments (i) KEHEHRE
At 31 March 2013, the total future minimum lease RZE—=F=A=+—08 " RBREY
payments under non-cancellable operating lease on FZTARHGERQOIET 2 KRR &
properties are payable as follows: R ERIBLRTEEN T A B AT
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Within one year —ER 37,831,632 28,162,913 St
=
After one year but within five years —FHERAFEAN 63,236,674 8,100,269 =t
|_H/

101,068,306 36,263,182

The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEBRBEEHNDEEZEYE -
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one ZEMN - RE—FEMNE -
year to four years, with an option to renew the leases MEESNETHBERRTAES -
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases MM BRELAES

includes contingent rentals.

BABHEMEBERLRT o« —T——/ —=FFH
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable due from clients, brokers and clearing houses.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to the credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.

In respect of accounts receivable due from clients,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all clients
including cash and margin clients. Cash clients are
required to place deposits as prescribed by the Group's
credit policy before execution of any purchase
transactions. Receivables due from cash clients are due
within the settlement period commonly adopted by the
relevant market convention, which is usually within a few
days from the trade date. Because of the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement period
involved, credit risk arising from the accounts receivable
due from cash clients is considered small. The Group
normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits as
collateral for providing margin financing to its clients.
Margin loans due from margin clients are repayable on
demand. For commodities and futures broking, initial
margin is required before opening of a trading position.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities collateral
and margin deposits of each margin account and futures
account are monitored by management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where
necessary.

27

B RREERAFE

AEBEZBAFEBHELERE RPHES
MR RIMERR o DB A KB 2
% 5 [\ B 7 B2 T b T T Uk 5 L g P BR R 2
SRR E R LB

(a)

&R
AEBZEERBRIEREBEKER
RERGERZER - EEERIERE
ERE  UREEEEERR

RN EFPESTH AR (B
R MARERP)HAEZZERNEE
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as the
Group normally enters into transactions with brokers and
clearing houses which are registered with regulatory
bodies and with sound reputation in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
as credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, and to
ensure compliance with FRR. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirement and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and funding in the short and
longer term. All of the Group's liabilities are expected to
be settled within one year. Except for bank loans, the
carrying amounts of all financial liabilities equal the
contractual undiscounted cash outflow. The contractual
undiscounted cash outflow of bank loans and loan from a
related company as at 31 March 2013 amounted to
$1,790,295,823 (2012: $605,395,808).

27

EREERAFEE)

(a)

(b)

&R E)
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RrRfEERR (L& REFMRER
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HeARERSEERR -
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AEEAEFNCEERAERAZHE
LERE  BREBEENEMESHRE
FE WHERNEMBERRR - K
SEZBRRENERERDEST
2 WETEERE BREFEH
e RARUMBRE LT
AERMERE UWENREHRSE

REBZBORATHES S A REH
MBESLTE  BREZETHRER
EoHBENREHTEE - A5EY
FiEBERAEN —FAEM - RiR
TEFIN FTEMBEEZREEY
HEFTHRUBERSREERSE - ©
—E-ZF=ZA=+—H" RITEXK
ERE—RBAEQRZERZETLN
REVRIR LWL E/451,790,295,823 7T
(=ZZ—=% : 605,395,808 7T) °
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27
VALUES (Continued)

EREERAFE S

(c) Interest rate risk () R=ZFE 2

(i) Interest rate profile
The Group charges interest on its margin clients on
the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-up.
Financial assets such as margin loans and deposit
with banks and financial liabilities such as bank
loans and loan from a related party are primarily at
fixed rates. The Group's income and operating cash
flows are not subject to significant interest rate risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the
reporting date is as follows:

() FIFEEE

REBEREE GRS IRER
FREPUBANE MBEE
(Inff R EHR R RITIFR) R %
BE(MRITEREKRE —ME
TZEF) TEZEE S ERE
B AEEZWAMEEHER
EVEmMBBANEER

TREHAEER KRS AR ZF
KA

2013
ke
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERAI= ERFI=
Assets BE
Deposits with banks RITER 0.001-3.2% 156,265,525 0.001-1.4% 249,483,240
Margin loans HREH 3.0-4.88% 2,127,786,534 3.88-4.88% 893,164,838
2,284,052,059 1,142,648,078
Liabilities =
Bank loans BITER 1.74%  1,690,000,000 2.05% 425,000,000
Loan from a related company ~ RKE—RHEA A 2.85% 100,000,000 2.55% 180,000,000
ZER
1,790,000,000 605,000,000
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27
VALUES (Continued)

EREERAFEE)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FI=ERERE)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HBEDZN

As at 31 March 2013, if interest rates had been 100
basis points higher with all other variables held
constant, the Group'’s profit before taxation would
have increased by approximately $4,900,000 (2012:
$5,400,000).

As at 31 March 2013, if interest rates had been 1
basis point lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group'’s profit before taxation would
have decreased by approximately $49,000 (2012:
$54,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks and margin loans and
higher/lower interest expense on bank loans and
loan from a related company. Other components of
equity would not be significantly affected by the
changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the reporting dates
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to interest rate risk at the reporting dates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2012.

R-T—=F=-A=+—0 &
FTEEMEBHERTEZER
T w A= _EFH100EE2 - Al
7N 5 B 2 B B AT A FE S N4
4,900,0007T( — T — — 4
5,400,000 7T) °

W_ZT—=F=A=+—0 %
FEHMERERIEZER
T WA ETHEEEE - B
S B 2B AR R ER DO
49,0007T( ==& — — £ : 54,000
JT) °

BRIEATE B, R D EE BN
RITFARRFRERZHFEBA
20, W RIRITERARKE
—HKEABRRZERFBHE
B FRER o HE s 2 E AR
MO T EZMEREFHMAEKRNT
@,

i S RE DN BN RER A R
BHRHEAHER - AEEAR
BN EAEEMFARRSH
HAEHNXRAR SR TA
AN 5% 18 2 BR 75 A g A P & AR B
REEEE) - DT DIRE —F——4
Z AR EAEAETT
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 BKEREERAFEE)
VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(d) SPERK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising
from financial instruments that are denominated in United
States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi. As the Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD") is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant. In respect of
financial instruments denominated in other currencies, the
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term

AEEAZIMNERR EZIRA X
T(ETDRARBHEZERMTA -
R (EIT]) BETH - A
BRa BLEXTCEXEFHER
- LAREMEBHEZERTA
ms  AKREEATENFERL TR
HEXBARDEIINEUEER A
RNFEEIR - AR [ i % B8 4 55
REERZKF - BEREST A EEMR
BINERR o

imbalances. The management monitors all the foreign
currency positions on a daily basis.

S L i AR A R SRR AT

RE AR ARKERERES -
AEERHEAPAARBHAZE
REBRFE  UWREHAKEFAZ
R (BE) 2Bt BIIRIT »
LTS - ER&EE T ERETTE R &
BAEREETHEME K EE 2T
BEHMZHNEATE -

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group's significant net exposure to Renminbi at the

SIUBWIILIS [BIDURUIS BY) 01 SS1ON

reporting date and the estimated impact to the Group’s
profit/(loss) for the year had the foreign exchange rates of
Renminbi changed at that date are illustrated below. In

E/

Ly

this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the USD against

%
£

>Jd
st
=

g
55

other currencies.

2013 2012
—g-= —T——F
Effect on Effect on
Appreciation/ profit after Appreciation/ profit after
Net assets (depreciation) tax and Net assets  (depreciation) tax and
in foreign in foreign retained in foreign in foreign EEN

currency currency profits currency currency
HIRH & ER
Mo 2 MNERE/  REBRF
EERE (E2f8) h-7 -
%

w

648,722 6,860,309 5 343,015
(5 (648,722) (5) (343,015)

Renminbi ARE 12,974,435
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28

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
(Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

(e) Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2013 and 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, subsidiaries of the
Company engaging in securities and futures broking have
secured banking facilities from an authorised institution for a
total amount of $993,000,000 (2012: $623,000,000). The
Company has issued corporate guarantees for a total principal
amount of $993,000,000 (2012: $623,000,000) for these
facilities. As at 31 March 2013, the subsidiary has utilised
$710,000,000 of these aggregate banking facilities (2012:
$325,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable a claim will be made against the Group
under any of the guarantees. The Group has not recognised any
deferred income in respect of the guarantees as their fair value
cannot be reliably measured and the transaction price was nil.

27

28

EREERAFEE)

(d) SMEmRBR(E)
S I B AR I R SRR AT (4B

HEREIMEBRRINEER 2 ZHD
ERREHTENRS BPEHAE
EEERINER R 2 SR TE - ZAD
WHRAE T — —FiER 2 E2E#
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(e)
2 =ZFfK=_F—Z-_%=AH
+—HB FEVBEERABEZER
HESAFETESAER -

HREE

RIBEHR  #EFHRABLL2AQTA
MEAR B RAKEREHERRITRES
$993,000,000T( — T — — 4
623,000,0007T) ° A A2 SRk S REE B
N 4 48 %8 /993,000,000 T( — T — — £ ¢
623,000,00070) 2 AEIELR - RZE—=4
—A=t—H ' WEBARCBHZERTR
& # %710,000,000C( = & — = F:
325,000,000 %) °
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXKBEEAITRS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere M EHRREMIESBEECEEATER
in the financial statements, the Group entered into the SN REFFTE NIERBEALTLS ©

following material related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEASHFM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEETEEEAS 2HWM (B FENF
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s SHIHERARNRESRWTIOMEE
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest mETEaFMEEX N 2&E) W
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: T

Directors’ fees EEXaken 400,991 387,012
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ ZEBE N EWEF 13,849,536 9,326,904
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 1,028,850 914,350
Contributions to Mandatory BIES R
Provident Fund 130,693 81,000
Equity-settled share-based payments B RG BEMR 2508 - 733,489
15,410,070 11,442,755
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note FEET ATBEIRA] (RN
6(b)). 6(b)) °
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEEEALTZ#ER
(i)  As at 31 March 2013, the Group had accounts ) M-ZZE—=%F=A=+—H 'K

receivable from related parties of $654,455 (2012:
$Nil) and accounts payable due to related parties of
$924,264 (2012: $5,192,421) respectively which
was arising from the Group’s ordinary course of
business in securities broking, margin financing and
commodities and futures broking. Accounts
receivable/payable from/to related parties are set at
the same terms as those normally offered to third
party clients.

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012/13

SERWBBEATZERA
654,455 L( ZE——F : T) K
FE B A - 2 BR 3K &R 924,264
JT(ZZF——% :5,192,4217T) °
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B HA A A0 2E 7S o FEURRRIE A
T2 BRRE R E A TR
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

29 ERBEEALIRS @)

(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) EEREEA T &R (E)

(ii)

As at 31 March 2013, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were rental
and office management deposits of $6,849,640
(2012: $3,562,373) which had been made to
related companies owned by a director of the
Company. These amounts were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable upon expiry of the respective
leases.

(c) Other transactions with related parties

(i)

(iii)

Brokerage income of $252,892 (2012: $591,338)
was received from the directors of the Company,
their close family members and related companies
owned by a director of the Company in the ordinary
course of the Group's business of securities broking
and commodities and futures broking. Commission
rates are set at the same level as those normally
offered to third party clients.

Rental expenses of $16,684,673 (2012:
$11,940,161) paid to related companies owned by
a director of the Company, were charged at a rate
mutually agreed between the parties involved with
reference to market rates.

The total future minimum lease payment under
non-cancellable operating lease on properties are
payable to related companies owned by a director

of the Company as follows:

iy HR—Z—=F=ZA=+—H8" H
fth FE M FRIR « 1R e RIER FHIEF
£6,849,640L( = F — = F :
3,562,373 70) B AARA R —%
EEHAzHEARIFzES
RRANEERZE - WEREAR
AR R B WA RIFE L
[EREEE o

() EHEEFEALTZHMRS

() LW A2528R2T(=—T—=
% :591,33870) DASKEREE
TSR ETTHE A8 40 DA K 7 om I BA
BEREEBMAARARES -
EZREKERARNE—RES
BB BEARWE - e E
FR—REE=ZHFEFREZHA
BRI o

iy BN—BARRESHA 2 @HE

A2 1 & 5 316,684,673 7T

—ZF— 14 :11,940,1617T) T3

REI K 2EMiBHER G AR
EZMEE -

(i) ARERT AR A = AR A B S
NARR—BESEHEEG2HAER
A] 2 AR R K 1 & 58 48 5 40
T

Within one year —FR 25,860,000 13,220,000
After one year but within five years — S & B A FR 51,720,000 1,035,000
77,580,000 14,255,000
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BEARBEEALTRZ &)

(Continued)

(c) Other transactions with related parties

(Continued)

(ivy On 13 June 2012, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a new loan facility letter with China Finance
(Worldwide) Limited (“CFW"), a company which is
100% beneficially owned by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for provision of an
increased revolving loan facility from $310,000,000
to $600,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for general
working capital purposes. Interest expense of
$3,270,149 was paid to CFW during the year (2012:
$3,145,095). The loan bears interest at HIBOR plus
2.75% per annum, is unsecured and repayable on
demand. As at 31 March 2013, BSSI has drawn
$100,000,000 (2012: $180,000,000) under the

() HEEATZHMRZ (H)

vy, RZZTE—=—F~A+=8" 8BS
BHEEBR(EE)BR QA
([BSSI) » A&z B2 BN B
NaE)) B (R GRA
AI(THRBEH ] ANARZIER
BREEEESER AR EFE]
—MHERBE LT REEA
AR B B 75 () BSS| HR 4 78 3R B A Al
& » £310,000,0007T & 0 =
600,000,0007T + FA1E—f& & &
Bg o FRMAFBEY LTS
3,270,149 L (=& — =4 :
3,145,0957T) - B RIZEBRT
R B N2.75% FFIR:F B
REERRARERER - R

=
O
—+
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facility. T—=ZF=ZA=+—H BSSIiE

% &R Bt & B #2 100,000,000 7T
il (ZZ— =4 : 180,000,0007) °
>3d

% 30 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING 30 EERRAEZERAT

iy COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2013 to be
New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated on 6
July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Mow
Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

EERR RTB—=F=A=+—H" &
NAZBEE AR RREER AR AR
ERARRR  ZRRAIR_ZEZNEFLHA
NEERBREZEERERBRELES A
BIEMMARS - YARERNEEERER - 57
RAZERERARLEFHAIHEARER 2
BTG -
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31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31 REZ=-—=%=H=+—H

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ILFEEEFERRERZE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE B TEAIRRZREBARELEZR
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 =

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEWEYBRERTZERE 82t A
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new e BEM TN IRNEBE—_E—=F=-/A=+—
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 A IEFE M AREME W EN SRR
March 2013 and which have not been adopted in these Bz BT EET R AIEH AR - S5 TN E
financial statements. These include the following which may be REBEBE -

relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

=
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RT5I B8Rz %R
ZEHEEXN
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — 1 July 2012
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income —E-——F+H—H
ERGERNE 1R ER]  MBHZZ2H — A TENZERZ ZH -
&
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013 ok
EBRBRELNE 105 FETHHE —T-=#—f—H S
=
=E
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013 B
BB ERIE 195 (K1E7T) - EEEF —E—=F—H—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015
ERUBMEEREINR  £HTA —E-hF—H—AH
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what REE FEMEZ S EE R EABME
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period HESX 2B 125 Hm/FARMA Ll g8
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption PRI REH AL B 2 & EE R BR ARG
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's RERFE -

results of operations and financial position.
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Five-year Financial Summary

HEBEE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HILEE

Results 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—ET—= —T——F —T——F —TIFTF —TTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T THIT THIT FHEIT

Turnover L 273,281 228,707 188,202 140,240 78,743
Profit before taxation [ A5 A v ) 107,151 73,351 48,635 72,211 25,011

Income tax FTiS i (14,925) (12,715) (8,017) (11,927) (3,876)
Profit for the year FEREF 92,226 60,636 40,618 60,284 21,135

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H
Assets and Liabilities EEREE 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E—= T ZT——F ZZ2-ITF ZZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THTT THIT THEIT T
Current assets TEEE 3,113,151 1,555,492 1,709,199 930,086 388,651
Non-current assets ERENEE 73,448 34,687 45,766 12,239 9,486
Total assets BERE 3,186,599 1,590,179 1,754,965 942,325 398,137
Current liabilities mEAaE 2,429,097 1,096,188 1,312,871 790,273 190,032
Non-current liabilities EREBAEE 26 193 515 = 288
Total liabilities BERE 2,429,123 1,096,381 1,313,386 790,273 190,320
Net assets BEFE 757,476 493,798 441,579 152,052 207,817

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years ended
31 March 2009 and 2010 which were extracted from the Company’s
prospectus dated 12 August 2010 have been prepared on a combined
basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at
the time when the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange, had been in existence throughout those years.
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